
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the 
use of social media by anyone attending.  This does not 
apply to any part of the meeting that is held in private 
session. 

Please ask for: 
Vanisha Mistry 

 
20 January 2023 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held on Monday 30 January 2023 at 7.30 pm in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Governace Services Manager 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Committee members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 
2022 (previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 11  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be available for questions from members of the public on 
issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

Public Document Pack



7.   RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT (Pages 5 - 16) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) on the current 
strategic risks facing the Council as determined by the Corporate Management 
Team.  These risks have been reviewed in place for the quarter October to 
December 2022.  
 

8.   RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY, STRATEGY AND FRAMEWORK (Pages 17 - 42) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) on a new Risk 
Management Policy and Strategy, along with the Risk Management Framework for 
the Council. 
 

9.   WHBC SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) PROGRESS REPORT 
(Pages 43 - 60) 
 

 Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) which provides details on the 
progress made by SIAS in delivering the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2022/23 
as at 13 January 2023. 
 

10.   AUDIT PLANNING REPORT - YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (Pages 61 - 108) 
 

 Report of Ernest & Young LLP providing the Council’s Audit planning report for the 
year ended 31 March 2022. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

12.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A) (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 13 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) and Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act as amended. 
 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 

PART II 
 

13.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIR  

 
Circulation: Councillors G.Michaelides (Chairman) 

J.Boulton (Vice-Chairman) 
L.Brandon 
F.Marsh 

R.Platt 
P.Smith 
C.Stanbury 
 

 
 Senior Leadership Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Vanisha 
Mistry, Governance Service on  or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


Part I 
Main author: Richard Baker 
Executive Member: Councillor Nick Pace 

       
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 30 JANUARY 2023 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (FINANCE & TRANSFORMATION) 

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report brings to Members’ attention the current strategic risks facing the 
Council, as determined by Strategic Leadership Team and the operational risks 
(with a score of over 50). 

1.2 These risks have been reviewed at the performance clinic in January 2023 and 
reflect the assessments of risk as at 31 December 2022.  

1.3 Narrative of risks will provide updates on the risk environment, against activities 
over the previous quarter (October to December 2023), or against upcoming 
activities as appropriate.  

2 Recommendation 

2.1 Members are asked to: 

 Note the attached current Risk Management Update; 

 Note comments and actions in respect of the strategic and top operational 
risks. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Appendix A shows the strategic risk register. Each strategic risk has ownership by 
a Corporate Director and an Executive Member. A summary of the assessed 
strategic risks is below: 

Risk Level Green Yellow Amber Red Total 

Number 0 1 14 2 17 

3.2 Appendix B shows the top risks which have a score of over 50, from the operational 
risk register. There are 4 risks currently assessed at this level.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



3.3 The risk scoring table is as follows and shows the impact2 x likelihood methodology 
we now work to: 

3.4 A new risk policy, strategy and framework is currently making its way through the 
committee review and approval process, after which the risk register will be 
updated, in time for the new municipal year.  

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “[a] relevant authority must 
ensure that it has a sound system of internal control which [among other matters] 
includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.” 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event 
may have its own financial consequences. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Failing to maintain adequate and effective arrangements for the management of 
risk may lead to risk events not being foreseen, an inadequate response to a risk 
event occurring and a failure to exploit opportunities. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implications 

7.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event 
may have security and terrorism implications. 

8 Procurement Implications 

8.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event 
may have procurement implications. 

9 Climate Change Implications 

9.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event 
may have climate change implications. 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implications 

10.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event 
may have health and safety implications. 

11 Communication and Engagement Implications 

11.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event 
may have communication and engagement implications. 

Likelihood 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

25 

16 

9 

4 

1 

50 

32 

18 

8 

2 

75 

48 

27 

12 

3 

100 

64 

36 

16 

4 

125 

80 

45 

20 

5 

Page 4



12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report supports all council priorities in that the effective 
management of risk is essential to the achievement of objectives. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
the proposals that are set out in this report as it relates purely to monitoring 
information. 

 
Name of Author:  Richard Baker 
Title:  Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) 
Date:  14 January 2022 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register – All Risks 

Appendix B – Operational Risk Register – Top Risks (50+ score) 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Risk Register - 2022/23 Quarter 3 Appendix A

Risk Title Risk Description Consequences Controls Risk Manager Latest Note Previous 

Score (Q2)

Current 

Score
Strategic - Availability 

of sites / land / assets 

Housing Development

Lack of suitable sites for 

affordable homes for 

development, either for direct  

provision by the council or 

disposal and grant funding to 

Registered Providers at the scale 

that is required. Sites need to be 

deliverable and suitable to attract 

interest

Increased homelessness, 

Financial - financial penalties, 

Reputational damage, 

Additional costs, Poor 

partnership working

Senior Leadership Team

Staff resource

Executive Director 

(Place)

The council has a Housing Delivery Strategy in place for affordable housing.  There is a 

mechanism for assessing available sites. The Housing Development and Services Manager 

has made links to a number of developers and land owners to identify opportunities.

We have reviewed a number of sites within the council's Housing Revenue Account, which 

could be brought forward. The council's Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 

Strategy identifies housing supply as a key target area.

18 18

Strategic - Change 

Management

A new culture and direction have 

been set by the transformation 

strategy  This risk addresses the 

consequences of any failure to 

robustly manage change.

Inadequate service shaping, 

Additional costs, 

Reputational damage

Use of consultants

Communication

Chief Executive Briefings

LGA Membership

Peer Challenge

HR - Meetings with Trades Unions

HR - Employee Forum

Appraisal and one to one process

Close Working Relationship with HR

Chief Executive The new management structure has now been embedded, and the new transformation 

strategy has been approved. An action plan to deliver the strategy has been developed, 

and a the approach to project and change management is under review. A new 

Transformation Board has been put in place to monitor and oversee key transformation 

and change projects. The risk management framework is under review and will form a key 

aspect of ensuring that risk are identified for programmes of changes and monitored 

closely.

32 32

Strategic - Community 

Consultation and 

Engagement

Failure to properly consult 

customers in line with legislative 

and regulatory requirements (as 

appropriate to relevant service 

areas). Failure to involve 

communities when planning 

services.

Intervention by regulatory 

bodies, Legal - challenge, 

Reputational damage, 

Additional costs, Inadequate 

service shaping

Corporate Strategy - Tenant 

Involvement Strategy (Housing)

Policy and Procedure Framework

Borough Panel

Tenants’ Panel

Alliance Strategy

Community Partnership Team 

engagement events

New Corporate Community and 

Stakeholder Engagement Strategy

Executive Director 

(Finance and 

Transformation)

The corporate Community and Stakeholder Engagement Group, with representation from 

council services, meets monthly. It is responsible for coordinating and communicating all 

consultation and engagement activity. It is also responsible for the delivery of the 

corporate community engagement strategy. A review of membership of this group is 

underway. The Customer Services Member Project Board has had Consultations added to 

the remit of the group and will be considering the approach to the non statutory 

consultations over the coming months.

32 32P
age 7



Strategic Risk Register - 2022/23 Quarter 3 Appendix A

Risk Title Risk Description Consequences Controls Risk Manager Latest Note Previous 

Score (Q2)

Current 

Score
Strategic - Corporate 

Resilience

Failure to meet the requirements 

of the Civil Contingencies Act 

2004, including the material 

failure or inadequacy of plans 

Failure to respond appropriately 

to a civil emergency or business 

continuity incident, including the 

duty of care to the community.  

The current plans are generic in 

nature and cover the following 

risks:

- Severe weather (fog, storm, 

snow or heatwave)

- Loss of, damage to, or denial of 

access to, a council site (both 

critical and non-critical)

- Loss of utilities (Gas, electricity, 

water or sewerage)

- Loss of critical ICT hardware, 

data or network, including a 

hostile attack

- Pandemic

- Staff (industrial action, loss of 

key staff)

- Supply chain (failure of 

contractor including 

performance)

- Fuel  shortage 

- Civil emergency

Community impact, 

Economic development, 

Unsafe assets, Customer 

dissatisfaction, Reputational 

damage, Poor partnership 

working, Intervention by 

regulatory bodies

Resilience - Local Resilience Forum

Resilience - WHBC Emergency Plan

Resilience - Crisis Support Team

Resilience - Training and Exercising

Resilience - Resilient 

Telecommunications

Resilience- Business Continuity 

Management Process

Resilience - Extended Floodline

Resilience - Care of People Plan

Service Director 

(Residents and 

Neighbourhood)

A comprehensive review of the Emergency Planning function has identified some training 

needs as a priority which is being addressed in February 2023.

75 48

Strategic - Data 

Protection

The General Data Protection 

Regulations (GDPR) replaced the 

previous Data Protection Act 

from May 18. It contains onerous 

obligations that had an 

immediate impact. As we handle 

people’s data we are responsible 

for keeping it safe.

Legal - Litigation, 

Intervention by regulatory 

bodies, Reputational 

damage, Legal - challenge, 

Additional costs

Governance - Data Protection Policies

ICT - data encryption

Procurement considerations - Data 

Protection in Contracts

Internal Auditing

Executive Director 

(Finance and 

Transformation)

GDPR remains a high priority for the Council, and work continues to ensure the Council 

remains GDPR compliant. However, as GDPR has been in place now for over 3 years, 

project type work (such as production of policies and procedures) has reduced, and the 

focus is on improving and enhancing awareness and procedures. Subject Access Requests 

have been increasing, and this work is currently being supported by an officer in the 

Governance team.  Risk assessments are completed on any breaches and action plans put 

into place. We have had no data breaches reported to the ICO for the quarter.

32 32

P
age 8



Strategic Risk Register - 2022/23 Quarter 3 Appendix A

Risk Title Risk Description Consequences Controls Risk Manager Latest Note Previous 

Score (Q2)

Current 

Score
Strategic - Finance The council is in a time of high 

inflation, with ongoing cuts to 

government funding forecast for 

the coming years. It aslo has 

restrictions on how much funding 

can be raised through council tax.

The cost of living crisis is likely to 

have an impact on the ability of 

residents and businesses in 

paying debts due to the council, 

and may impact on the use of 

discretionary services such as our 

cultural services. 

The reducing capital balances for 

the general fund puts means the 

council will become more reliant 

on borrowing, and interest rate 

rises will increase the revenue 

cost to deliver capital schemes. 

Identification of long term 

efficiency plans will be crucial to 

ensure the medium and long 

term sustainability of the council.

Finance - Depletion of 

reserves, Reputational 

damage, Service delivery - 

loss/reduction, Financial - 

affects on receipts, Service 

delivery -can't meet demand

Finance - Financial Systems and 

Controls

Finance - Reserve policy and strategy

Finance - Budget Setting Process

Finance - Medium Term Financial 

Strategy

Finance: Minimum Revenue Provision 

Policy

Transformation Programme

Culture of change and improvement

Finance - Budget Monitoring 

Processes and Procedures

Monitoring of debt collection rates

Finance - Financial Regulations

Finance - Treasury Management 

Strategy

Treasury and Debt Monitoring

Internal Audit

External Audit

Prevention and detection of fraud

Contract Procedure Rules

Executive Director 

(Finance and 

Transformation)

There is a continuing and increased challenge to meet the medium term targets. The MTFS 

update and budget for 2022/23 was approved at full council in February 2022 and updated 

in September 2023 to take into account the uncertain economic conditions and cost of 

living crisis. 

A draft budget has been prepared and published for consideration at January Cabinet. The 

Task and Finish Panel has met to consider key budget proposals. The government 

announced key budget policy statements, followed by he draft local government which 

was published on 21st December. The council has proposed a balanced budget with a 

planned use of reserves which ensures reserves remain above minimum assessed levels. 

There continues to be significant uncertainties for the future, and challenging targets 

ahead. The risk has been lowered this quarter following the publication of the balanced 

budget proposals.

100 50

Strategic - Health and 

Safety

Failure to maintain an adequate 

and effective safety management 

system within the Council, 

including structures, processes, 

control measures and allocation 

of responsibilities and ensuring 

competence of employees, 

contractors and service providers.

H&S - Injuries and ill health, 

Lost productivity, Sickness 

absence, Legal - Litigation, 

Intervention by regulatory 

bodies, Reputational damage

Collective Responsibility of Senior 

Leadership Team

Corporate Health and Safety Policies

Map of the extent of the undertaking

Staff Induction and Training

Service Director 

(Property 

Maintenance and 

Climate Change)

The Risk and Resilience function has been transferred to a new service. A dedicated 

corporate Health and Safety team has been put in place within the Property Maintenance 

new structure.  Interim arrangements are in place to ensure the function continues to 

support the teams.  The recruitment process to appoint permanent staff has commenced. 

50 50

P
age 9



Strategic Risk Register - 2022/23 Quarter 3 Appendix A

Risk Title Risk Description Consequences Controls Risk Manager Latest Note Previous 

Score (Q2)

Current 

Score
Strategic - 

Homelessness

Failure to meet the demand of 

homelessness due to lack of 

provision of temporary housing 

and permanent housing

Intervention by regulatory 

bodies, Additional costs, 

Reputational damage, 

Increased homelessness, 

Community impact, Service 

delivery -can't meet demand, 

Legal - Regulatory, Financial 

Implications, Risk to 

residents wellbeing

Housing, Homelessness and Rough 

Sleeping Strategy

Budget Monitoring Processes and 

Procedures

HRA Business Plan

Delivery Strategy

Use of funding for homeless 

prevention

Provision of temporary 

accommodation stock

Private Sector Navigator post

Night Shelter and rough sleeper 

navigators

Executive Director 

(Place)

The Housing,  Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy sets out our approach to tackling 

homelessness.

We have strategic plans to increase the amount and quality of temporary accommodation.

The housing options team is highly skilled and we supplement the service with support 

from other agencies such as SADA, Resolve, DrugLink, and YMCA

Use of the government's Homeless Prevention funding for preventative projects and 

activities has helped to ensure that the number of households in temporary 

accommodation has not risen further

Additional funding has been received to provide specialist services for single people, ex 

offenders and victims of domestic abuse

Demand is very high currently and the available properties coming via development and 

through voids is low, so there is an increasing number of households in temporary 

accommodation and on the housing needs register.

48 48

Strategic - ICT Failure Critical failure of ICT services, for 

example due to virus attack or 

ransomware virus attacks. These 

target computers running 

Microsoft Windows.

ICT - loss of service ICT - malware detection

ICT - database updates

ICT - Disaster Recovery Plan

ICT - Temporary PSTN connection

ICT - infrastructure review

ICT - ICT Strategy

ICT - PSN Compliance Testing

Executive Director 

(Finance and 

Transformation)

TThe completion of the Housing,  Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy sets out our 

approach to tackling homelessness.

We have strategic plans to increase the amount and quality of temporary accommodation. 

It is anticipated that the Howlands House project will make more progress in the next 

twelve months.

The housing options team is highly skilled and we supplement the service with support 

from other agencies such as SADA, Resolve, DrugLink, YMCA etc..

Use of the government's Homeless Prevention funding for preventative projects and 

activities has helped to ensure that the number of households in temporary 

accommodation has not risen further. Funding commitments for 23/24 and 24/25 have 

also been provided by government.

Additional funding has been received to provide specialist services for single people, ex 

offenders and victims of domestic abuse

Demand continues to be very high. The pipeline of supply from the Wheat Quarter and 

other schemes has started to increase, so there is a steady number of households in 

75 75

Strategic - Income from 

recyclables

Potential risk regarding income 

receipts for recyclables. Price can 

be volatile depending on the 

market conditions

Increased cost of waste 

collection

Budget control

Hertfordshire waste strategic and 

operational partnerships

Service Director 

(Residents and 

Neighbourhood)

The income from recycled materials can fluctuate and is influenced by UK and global 

markets. The risk of volatility remains but anticipated income is being met at present 

although there is slightly less demand/income from paper at present.

64 64

P
age 10



Strategic Risk Register - 2022/23 Quarter 3 Appendix A

Risk Title Risk Description Consequences Controls Risk Manager Latest Note Previous 

Score (Q2)

Current 

Score
Strategic - Local Plan Risk that Local Plan will be found 

unsound.  Inspector wants to 

examine all previously rejected 

sites to identify most sustainable 

choices.

Economic development, 

Financial - affects on 

receipts, Economic - inward 

investment, Economic - local 

infrastructure, Economic - 

new facilities, Environment - 

hostile developments, 

Economic - loss of  funding, 

Reputational damage

Planning - Evidence

Planning - Committees

Planning - Project Plan

Planning - Consultation

Planning - Section 106 and CIL

Executive Director 

(Place)

Following a decision of full Council in December 2022, the Council has now commenced 

consultation on the main modifications to the Local Plan. This consultation takes place in 

January and February 2022 and comments received will be sent to the Inspector for his 

consideration.

The Inspector will consider the responses received and will then prepare his report on the 

Local Plan. It will then be for full Council (summer 2023) to determine whether or not to 

adopt the plan.

64 27

Strategic - 

Management of 

Council Owned Housing 

Property Assets

Failure to provide and maintain 

council housing property assets 

and services. Taking opportunities 

to invest in assets.

Increased homelessness, 

Community impact, 

Economic development, 

Unsafe assets, H&S - Injuries 

and ill health, Intervention 

by regulatory bodies, 

Customer dissatisfaction, 

Reputational damage, 

Additional costs, Financial 

Implications, Safety of 

Residents

Planned works delivery

LGSR compliance

Electrical safety

Asbestos Management

Policy and Procedure Framework

Fire Risk Assessment

H and S - Organisation And 

responsibilities

Lift Safety Management

Water Hygiene Management

Service Director 

(Property 

Maintenance and 

Climate Change)

A £150m 5 year investment plan is now in place and built into the HRA business plan. Year 

1 is in the 2023/24 budget. All 3 contractors have been procured to deliver the programme 

and tenders from supporting consulting surveyors are being evaluated.  Staff structure 

reviewed to deliver and recruitment to new posts underway. Kitchen and bathroom 

specifications reviewed and updated to meet modern requirements.  

Building safety compliance performance is strong and a positive internal audit outcome 

was achieved. Repairs and voids performance has improved significantly following the 

implementation of the new repairs contract.  A detailed response has been sent to the RSH 

following the recent damp and mould tragedy.  A working group is in place with a detailed 

action plan being implemented to include reviewing literature, data management etc.  

Preparation for accelerating stock condition surveying is underway with the engagement 

of an external provider. A project of £4.3m with a grant bid for £1.9m of Social Housing 

Decarbonisation Fund programme to address homes which are harder to retain heat and 

therefore prone to damp and mould issues has been submitted. This will improve more 

than 180 homes in our housing stock. We are awaiting a response to the bid. Detailed 

Preparations for the new Building and Fire Safety legislation which is implemented in 2023 

are in place. A key risk is the high rise block at Queensway House which is in the process of 

being emptied and decommissioned.

48 48

Strategic - 

Management of 

Council Owned Non-

Housing Property 

Assets

Failure to provide and maintain 

council owned non-housing 

property assets. Taking 

opportunities to invest in assets.

Economic development, 

Unsafe assets

Property Portfolio

Asset Management Plan

Service Director 

(Property 

Maintenance and 

Climate Change)

Planned maintenance works are being delivered in line with the recommendations from 

the subsequent condition surveys carried out.  A budget bid has been submitted for 

£330,000 for 2023/24 . 

Building safety compliance remains strong and detailed preparations for the new Building 

and Fire Safety legislation are in place which includes the residential units in the general 

fund.  Works are underway to comply with MEES legislation which sets a minimum energy 

performance standards score of E and above for commercial units by April 2023.

Decarbonisation works have been completed to 3 of the larger General Fund sites which 

has decreased the overall carbon baseline by 16% with a further 3 grant bids submitted 

which will take this reduction level to 25% if successful

32 32

P
age 11



Strategic Risk Register - 2022/23 Quarter 3 Appendix A

Risk Title Risk Description Consequences Controls Risk Manager Latest Note Previous 

Score (Q2)

Current 

Score
Strategic - New 

Government’s new 

Resources and Waste 

Strategy

Draft proposals regarding waste 

producer responsibility and 

collection of waste/recyclables, 

garden waste

Potential Implications for 

Councils

Hertfordshire waste strategic and 

operational partnerships

Service Director 

(Residents and 

Neighbourhood)

The Government 's Resources and Waste Strategy outlined proposed changes to the waste 

regime. This includes consistency of what recyclables are collected, Deposit return 

schemes for some recyclables and Extended Producer Responsibility (packaging producers 

being responsible for the costs of dealing with the packaging they produce). It is 

anticipated that the new proposals will come be implemented during 2024 or 2025 but the 

details are awaited.

48 48

Strategic - Prevent Not properly implementing the 

government’s ‘Prevent’ agenda to 

address the risks of radicalisation.

Reputational damage, 

Undetected Abuse, Prevent 

Delayed referral to Channel, 

Prevent - lack of staff 

awareness, Poor partnership 

working

Prevent - WRAP workshops

Prevent - Nominated Lead Officer for 

Prevent

Prevent matters discussed at 

Safeguarding meetings.

Prevent - Channel

Prevent - Venue Guidance

Prevent - Lease and Hire Agreements

Prevent - Security and Terrorism 

implications in report template

Representation at County Prevent 

Board

Service Director 

(Residents and 

Neighbourhood)

The 'Prevent' duty in now aligned under the Community Safety Partnership. We are 

reviewing the 'Prevent' duty and responsbilities  as part of our Community Safety Action 

plan to identify what further actions we can take to give further assurance to the Council 

and partners.

32 32

Strategic - Safeguarding Failure to meet obligations in 

respect of children and adults at 

risk from abuse.

Undetected Abuse, Legal - 

Litigation, Reputational 

damage, Risk to residents 

wellbeing

Safeguarding Policies

Safeguarding Action Plan

Reporting pathways communicated 

and updated

Mandatory safeguarding training 

programme

Human Resources 

Manager

It has been agreed, as part of a wider corporate exercise to streamline corporate groups, to 

merge the Safeguarding Group with the E&D Steering Group and Prevent work strands. A 

new Terms of Reference are being developed which will set out the governance structure 

and future membership of the group.

Due to changes in senior management, the terms of reference and membership of the 

group needs to reconsidered again.

The membership of the group has been reviewed and implemented. Safeguarding training 

has been delivered to front line staff and new recruits.

32 32

Strategic - 

Staff/Workforce

Failure to recruit or retain staff 

with key skills. Lack of resources 

due to high levels of sickness, 

turnover or industrial action. 

Failure to develop and train 

existing staff. Breach of legislation 

or failure to follow our HR 

policies.

Legal - Litigation, HR - High 

Staff Turnover, Low morale, 

Additional costs

HR - Workforce Development Strategy

Apprenticeship Scheme

Training and Awareness of HR Staff

Departmental Training Plans for Food

HR - Reporting to ROSC

Appraisal and one to one process

HR - Meetings with Trades Unions

HR - Employee Forum

HR Policiesand procedures

Flexible Working

Health and Wellbeing Programme

Green Travel Plan

Human Resources 

Manager

The workforce strategy action plan has been approved as part of the transformation 

strategy. The actions and targets meet the strands of the strategy. HR work closely with all 

senior managers to mitigate these risks. The new Transformation Strategy contains some 

key commitments in relation to our workforce and culture, and the HR Manager will lead 

on this strand of the strategy and associated action plan. 

We have been successful in recruiting to most roles, by trying different techniques and 

seeking candidates with transferable skills and being quicker to get to interview before 

candidates accept alternative job offers.

48 48

P
age 12



Operational Risk Register for risks scoring 50+ - 2022/23 Quarter 3 Appendix B

Risk Title Risk Description Consequences Controls Risk Manager Latest Note Previous 

Score (Q2)

Current 

Score
Planning - Housing land 

supply

Failure to maintain rolling five 

year housing land supply, which 

puts Council at risk of having to 

approve undesirable 

developments

Reputational damage, 

Additional costs, 

Intervention, Environment - 

hostile developments, 

Financial - financial 

penalties, Speculative 

planning applications

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Planning - AMR

Planning Policy 

Implementation 

Manager

The lack of five-year housing land supply continues to pose a significant risk of speculative 

development. Whilst the Local Plan has progressed to Main Modifications stage, this does 

not prevent applications being submitted and utilising the NPPF five-year land supply 

policies until such time as the plan is adopted.

80 80

Property Services (Housing) - 

Disrepair

That the Council fails to meet its 

responsive and planned 

maintenance obligations and 

allows property assets to fall into 

disrepair. This may result in 

discomfort and a reduced quality 

of life for the tenant and 

occupiers. It may also lead to 

legal action

Legal - Litigation, Legal - 

challenge, Reputational 

damage, Additional costs, 

Customer dissatisfaction, 

H&S - Injuries and ill health

Disrepair Process

Service Review

Staff recruitment

Service Manager 

(Housing Repairs 

and Buidling 

Safety)

The risk remains the same as we continue to receive disrepair claims but the system in 

place to manage these is working well.   The number of disrepair claims should  improve 

overtime as repairs are completed (we see an improvement in the first quarter of the new 

repairs contract) and the new 5 year investment programme makes an impact with new 

components being installed. 

64 64

Property Services (Housing) - 

Quality Assurance II

Complaints not managed 

effectively as per policy

Reputational damage, 

Inadequate service shaping, 

Legal - challenge, Additional 

costs, Unsafe assets

Complaints Process 

Weekly monitoring by Director

Service Manager 

(Housing Repairs 

and Buidling 

Safety)

Complaints handling remains a challenge.  The new structure will address this and 

recruitment is underway.  Interim resources are in place to manage this risk. 

80 64

Supplier financial failure Failure of supplier due to 

bankruptcy etc

Contract Management Guide

Credit Agency alerts

Contract monitoring

Procurement 

Manager

Due to uncertainty in the market place due to Covid 19, the probability on supplier failure 

has increased with the probability increased. Some sectors continue to see impacts of the 

pandemic on income streams, and this is compounded by the current cost of living crisis.

64 64

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No:  
Main author: Richard Baker 
Executive Member: Various 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
AUDIT COMMITEE – 30 JANUARY 2023  
REPORT OF THE EXEUTIVE DIRECTOR (FINANCE & TRANSFORMATION) 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY, STRATEGY AND FRAMEWORK 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report presents a new Risk Management Policy and Strategy, along with the 
Risk Management Framework for the Council. 

1.2 Following the management restructure, the remit for risk management has been 
moved to the Finance and Transformation Directorate, providing a good 
opportunity for a fundamental review.  

1.3 The council’s current Risk Management Strategy and Framework is a single 
document, which does not clearly distinguish between the Council’s Policy, 
Strategy and the framework for delivery of risk management activities.  

1.4 The new strategy and framework is presented to the Committee for consideration 
in advance of the 2023/24 year to ensure that following its approval, officer training 
can be provided and a full and comprehensive review of the risk register to be 
undertaken in advance of the start of 2023/24. Member training on the new strategy 
and framework will be provided at the start of the new municipal year. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Audit Committee consider the Risk Management Policy, Strategy and 
Framework for adequacy and effectiveness and recommend its approval to 
Cabinet.  

3 Background 

3.1 Following the management restructure, the remit for risk management has been 
moved to the Finance and Transformation Directorate, providing a good 
opportunity for a fundamental review.  

3.2 The council’s current Risk Management Strategy and Framework is a single 
document, which does not clearly distinguish between the Council’s Policy, 
Strategy and the framework for delivery of risk management activities.  

3.3 Separate documents have been proposed, to ensure there is clear distinction 
between the strategy and framework. Cabinet will be responsible for the approval 
of the Policy and Strategy, and officers will maintain and approve the Framework 
and any associated guidance. 

3.4 The new Policy and Strategy, provide a clear policy statement on the Council’s 
commitments and objectives on risk management, sets a clear strategy on how it 
will ensure risks are managed and the governance arrangements in place for 
oversight of risk.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



3.5 It sets out a clear approach to those risks which will be reportable to senior officers 
and members, a clearer approach to risk appetite, and introduces the use of both 
inherent and residual risks, to enhance understanding and oversight on how the 
control measures used impact on the assessed level of risk. 

3.6 The Framework provides the detailed guidance on risk management, including 
how risks are identified, assessed, managed and reported. It also includes the 
comprehensive roles and responsibilities of officers and Members in relation to 
risk. 

3.7 Risks are currently managed on the Council’s performance management software, 
Clearview. This system is no longer considered to be fit for purpose, and risk 
registers will be moved onto standard Microsoft tools, which will also enable project 
managers to maintain project risk registers which the council does not currently 
have a consistent approach to.  This change will enable risk managers to update 
risks more frequently and improve reporting and management oversight. 

3.8 Following approval of the new policy and strategy, risk managers will be trained on 
risk management and on the new system. Member training will be provided at the 
start of the new municipal year, when the policy and strategy will take effect from.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “[a] relevant authority must 
ensure that it has a sound system of internal control which [among other matters] 
includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.” 

4.2 The effective management of risk reduces the risk of adverse legal implications 
associated with risk events.  

4.3 The terms of reference of Audit Committee include- ‘To consider the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council's control environment - the systems of governance, 
internal control and risk management’. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with the new policy, strategy 
and framework. 

5.2 The new digital tools to be used, are already provided as part of the councils 
Microsoft licensing arrangements.  

5.3 The effective management of risk reduces the risk of adverse financial and 
insurance implications associated with risk events.  

6 Human Resources Implication(s) 

6.1 Officer training will be provided on the new risk management policy, strategy and 
framework, before the start of the new municipal year.  

7 Risk Management Implications 

7.1 This report seeks to improve the management and oversight of risk for the Council. 
The key risks associated with this are around ensuring that the new approach is 

Page 16



adhered to, and the risk managers are adequately trained. Training is planned for 
the new year, along with a full and comprehensive review of the risk register. More 
regular reporting will be in place for Senior Management and the new systems will 
enable risk managers to update risks more easily and frequently.  

8 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no direct security & terrorism implications arising as a result of this 
report. 

8.2 The effective management of risk reduces the risk of adverse security and 
terrorism implications associated with risk events.  

9 Procurement Implication(s) 

9.1 The effective management of risk reduces the risk of procurement implications 
associated with risk events.  

10 Climate Change Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no climate change implications arising as a result of this report. 

11 Link to Corporate Priorities 

11.1 The subject of this report is linked to the efficient delivery of all of the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities. 

12 Equality and Diversity 

12.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) was not completed because this report 
does not propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development 
of new service-related policies which would place impacts on protected groups. 

13 Communication and Engagement 

13.1 Training will be provided to officers and members to ensure the new policy, 
strategy and framework to ensure they are ell communicated and understood. 

14 Health and Wellbeing 

14.1 The effective management of risk reduces the risk of health and wellbeing 
implications associated with risk events.  

 
Name of author Richard Baker 
Title Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) 
Date 17 November 2022 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

 
Version 1.0 

 
Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy 
 

Scope: 
This policy sets out the risk policy and strategy for the council and 
applies to staff and councillors of the council that manage and 
oversee risk.   

Effective Date: April 2023 

  
Review Date: January 2024 

  
Author: Executive Director (Finance and Transformation)  

  
Policy Owned by: Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) 

 
Statute: 

 
N/A 
 

National Standards and 
Guidance 

CIPFA/IFAC: International Framework: Good Governance in the 
Public Sector (2014) 
CIPFA/Solace: Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework (2016) 
ISO: 31000:2018 
HM Treasury: Orange Book 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

 
Related Policies and 
procedures 

 
Risk Management Framework 
Business Continuity Plan 
Health & Safety Policies and Procedures 
Disaster Recovery Procedures 

Page 19



 

                                        

 

 

1 Scope 

1.1 The purpose of this document is to outline an overall approach to risk management that 
addresses the risks, both negative and positive, facing the Council in achieving its 
objectives and which will facilitate the effective recognition and management of risks. 
The approach has been designed to support Members and officers in fulfilling their risk 
management responsibilities in a consistent manner. 

1.2 Risk management will be embedded within the daily operations of the Council, from 
strategy and policy formulation through to business planning, general management and 
operational processes. It will also be applied where the Council works in partnership 
with other organisations to ensure that partnership risks are identified and managed 
appropriately.  

1.3 Through understanding risks, decision-makers will be better able to evaluate the impact 
of a decision or action on the achievement of the Councils objectives. 

1.4 Risk management will not focus upon risk avoidance, but on the identification and 
management of an acceptable level of risk. It is the Councils aim to proactively identify, 
understand and manage the risks inherent in our services and associated with our plans, 
policies and strategies, to support responsible, informed risk taking and as a 
consequence, aim to improve value for money.  

1.5 The Council will seek to learn from other organisations where appropriate and to keep 
up to date with the best practice in risk management. Annual reviews of the Policy, 
Strategy and Framework will be undertaken to assess options for further alignment with 
practices adopted by partners. 

2 Policy Statement 

2.1 The Council is committed to establishing and maintaining a consistent risk management 
approach throughout its decision making and operational processes.  

2.2 The Councils risk management objectives are to: 

 Ensure that risks that could prevent the Council achieving its objectives (including the 
protection of the Councils reputation) are identified and appropriately managed; 

 Ensure that risk management is clearly and consistently applied throughout the 
Council; 

 Raise awareness of the principles and benefits involved in the risk management 
process; 

 Inform policy and operational decisions through the identification of risks and their 
likely impact; 

 Ensure compliance with statutory requirements; and, 

 Ensure safety and wellbeing of staff, Members and customers. 

Page 20



 

                                        

 

 

3 Strategy 

3.1 The policy objectives will be achieved by; 

 Maintaining documented risk management procedures (the “Risk Management 
Framework”); 

 Understanding and communicating’s the Council’s risk appetite.  

 Considering risk management implications in reports and decision-making processes; 

 Ensuring risk managers are adequately trained in the management of risk; 

 Maintaining strategic, operational and project-based risk registers that identify and 
assess all significant risks facing the Council, which will assist the Council achieve its 
objectives through pro-active risk management; and, 

 Ensuring effective Governance arrangements are in place for reporting and 
monitoring of risk, allowing action to be taken swiftly where necessary. 

4 Risk Management Framework 

4.1 The Council will have a documented Risk Management Framework which provides 
guidance to managers on the management of risk including the identification, 
assessment, management and reporting of risk. 

4.2 The Risk Management Framework will be subject to an annual review. 

5 Risk Appetite 

5.1 The Risk Management Framework will set out the process for the assessment of 
inherent and residual risk levels.  

5.2 Risks will be assessed into the following levels: 

Acceptable Manageable Serious Severe 

5.3 The Council will accept or tolerate risks with an inherent classification of “Acceptable”. 
This means such risks need no further action is necessary for such risks. 

5.4 Risks with an inherent level of “Manageable” to “Severe” require risk managers to 
follow the Risk Management Framework in the management and reporting of risks.  

6 Decision Making 

6.1 All Committee reports, Executive Member Decisions and documented Officer decisions 
will include a section on risk management implications.  

 

Page 21



 

                                        

 

 

7 Training 

7.1 All Senior Managers, and those responsible for the management of risk, will be provided 
with risk management training.  

7.2 Refresher training will be provided on a bi-annual cycle.   

7.3 Member training will be provided to those responsible for the Governance of Risk, 
including Cabinet and Audit Committee.  

7.4 Wider training needs will be identified and scheduled as part of the general Member 
Development Programme as required.  

8 Risk Identification, Assessment and Registers 

8.1 There will be a formal annual risk identification exercise undertaken as part of action 
plan setting for the year. This will identify key strategic and operational risks associated 
with the delivery of the action plan and corporate commitments.  

8.2 Risk management will be embedded into the daily operations of the council, reports 
and decision making. Risk registers will be updated on a monthly basis with new, 
emerging, updated or closed risks. 

8.3 All risks will be allocated a “Risk Owner” who will be responsible for ensuring that the 
risk is appropriately managed. Each strategic risk will be assigned to a member of the 
Senior Leader Team. 

8.4 Risk registers will be managed within a single system, including strategic, operational 
and project risks.  

9 Governance 

9.1 Cabinet will be responsible for the approval of the Risk Management Policy and Strategy 
(minor updates will be dealt with via an Executive Member decision) 

9.2 Regular reporting for risk oversight and the management of risk will be as follows: 

Strategic Leadership Team Monthly 

Performance Clinic Quarterly 

Cabinet Quarterly 

Audit Committee Quarterly 

9.3 Reporting will include all strategic risks. Operational risks will be reported where the 
residual risk is “Serious” or “Severe”. The management of “Manageable” risks will be 
the responsibility of Directors and risk managers. 

9.4 Project Risks will be the responsibility of Project Sponsors and Managers. These will be 
transferred to Operational and Strategic risk registers where there is a likely impact on 
the Council’s ability to deliver its objectives.  

 

Page 22



 

                                        

 

 

9.5 Audit Committee will be responsible for monitoring the Councils risk management 
arrangements.  

9.6 Executive Members will be briefed where appropriate at monthly briefings to ensure 
they are aware of significant risks affecting their portfolios and any improvements in 
controls which are proposed. 

9.7 Internal Audit will audit the process on a regular basis, to ensure effectiveness of the 
Risk Framework. 

9.8 The production of the Annual Governance Statement signed by the Chief Executive and 
Leader of the Council at the end of each financial year, will report on the effectiveness 
of Risk Management and report on any governance issues. 

9.9 Other Corporate Groups will also oversee specific themed risks, such as Health and 
Safety Risks being overseen by the Operational Health and Safety Board, who will report 
significant matters to the Corporate Governance Group. 

 

10 Version History 

Version no. 1.0 Date effective: April 2023 

Full / partial review? Full  

Brief summary of changes: Full Refresh of Policy and Strategy 

Staff consultation (teams): Senior Management Team 

Author: 
Richard Baker, Executive Director (Finance and 
Transformation)  

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Risk Management 
Framework 

 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

 

 
April 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Page 2 of 16   
 

 

 
Section 

 
Risk Management Framework 

 
Page 

1 Introduction 3 

2 Roles and responsibilities 4 

3 Risk Management Process 6 

4 Risk Identification 7 

5 Risk Assessment 10 

6 Risk Management and Controls 14 

7 Risk Registers 15 

8 Risk Reporting 16 

Page 26



Page 3 of 16   
 

1 Introduction 

 
1.1 The purpose of the risk management framework is to define how risks and opportunities will 

be handled within the Council. The framework provides information on roles and 
responsibilities, processes and procedures. 

 

1.2 The Council has a clear framework which defines the process for identifying, assessing, 
managing/ controlling, reviewing and reporting of its risks.  

 

1.3 The Council expects all of its employees and Councillors to have a level of understanding of 
how risks and opportunities could affect the performance of the Council and to acknowledge 
the management of those risks as part of their everyday activities. This could be the 
management of strategic risks (those risks that need to be considered when making 
judgements about medium and long terms goals), operational risks that managers and staff 
will encounter in the daily course of their work, of project risks which contribute to successful 
project delivery. 

 

1.4 The Council has a four-step process for identifying, assessing, managing and controlling and 
reviewing the risk (See Figure 1, section 3). This is a continuous process and integrates 
closely with performance management. The Council has an agreed criteria by which to judge 
the likelihood and impact of risks, effectiveness of control measures and required level of 
management of residual risks. 

 
1.5 The risk management framework is a continuous cycle designed not only to identify, assess, 

manage and review risks, but also to support business objectives. The implementation of this 
framework will support the Council in recognising risk and minimising its impact through all 
areas of service provision. 
 

 

Page 27



Page 4 of 16   
 

2 Roles and responsibilities 
 

2.1 The respective roles and responsibilities within the Council for the Risk Management 
Framework are set out below: 

 

Council 
The Council will: 

 Consider risk management implications when making decisions 
 
Cabinet 
The Cabinet will: 

 Approve the Council’s Risk Management Policy, Strategy and Framework 

 Consider risk management implications when making decisions 

 Maintain oversight of the risk register and risk management issues 
 

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee will: 

 Maintain an independent oversight of the risk register and risk management issues 

 Undertake reviews of specific areas of risk management activity or initiatives where 
required 

 Oversee the work of Internal Audit. Planning for audits will be on a risk based 
approach and the programme will include a rolling review of risk management 
framework (such as the adequacy of the control framework and Health and Safety) 

 Review and approve the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 
 

Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) 
The Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) will: 

 Be responsible for the oversight of risk management activities of the Council 

 Provide the Cabinet and Audit Committee with assurance that the Councils 
corporate business risks are being actively and appropriately managed 

 Make arrangements for the review maintenance the strategic, operational and project 

risk registers 

 Ensure appropriate training is provided to all of those involved with risk management. 

 
Senior Management Team (SMT) 
The Senior Management Team will: 

 Maintain oversight of the risk register and risk management issues 

 Identify and maintain Strategic risks 

 Oversee the corporate approach to risk management 

 Identify, assess, and manage and oversee risks through the risk management 
framework 

 Demonstrate commitment to the embedding or risk management across the 
organization 

 Identify the risk managers in their services 
 

Corporate Groups 
There are a number of corporate working groups, who as part of their responsibilities will: 

 Maintain oversight of the risk register and risk management issues within their remit 

 Ensure risk management issues are escalated to the appropriate group or 
Management Team  

 Monitor and influence processes and controls for risks within their remit 

 Put plans in place and monitor these plans to improve risk management issues 
 
These groups include (but are not limited to) the Corporate Governance Group, the 
Operational Health and Safety Board and the Safeguarding and Equalities Group. 

Page 28



Page 5 of 16   
 

Risk Managers  
Risk Managers are employees involved in the management of risks. This would include (but is 
not limited to) members of SMT, Service Managers, Team Leaders, Lead Officers, project 
managers, will: 

 Identify and assess new risks  

 Maintain the Council’s operational risk registers in relation to their areas of 
responsibility, identifying and reporting any significant risk management issues 
affecting their service area. 

 Ensure that an effective processes and controls are in place to manage risks faced by 

the service. 

 Updating risks on a regular basis for impact, likelihood, control measures and 
appropriate commentary. 

 Identify initiatives that could reduce the impact and/or likelihood of risks occurring. 

 Ensure that risk register entries and controls are accurate and up to date. 

 Monitor the progress of planned actions on regular basis to ensure that aims are 
achieved. 

 
PMO, Performance and Data Team 
The PMO, Performance and Data Team will: 

 Ensure that risk management records and procedures are properly maintained and 
that clear audit trails exist in order to ensure openness and accountability. 

 Provide the Executive Director (Finance and Transformation) with progress of 
delivery of risk register timescales and any other risk issues as appropriate. 

 Produce regular reports against the risk register for reporting to Senior Management 
and Members. 

 
Insurance, Treasury and Controls Team 

 Ensure the timely purchase of adequate insurance for the transfer of risk, where 
appropriate. 

 Ensure risks identified as part of claims management are reported to management 
for inclusion in the risk register. 

 

All employees 
All employees, within their given areas of responsibility and work, will: 

 Understand risks and regard their management as part of their everyday activities, 
including the identification and reporting of risks and opportunities which could affect 
the Council. 

 Assist with risk assessments for their areas of work 

 Support and participate in risk management activities. 
 

Internal Audit 
The Internal Audit team will: 

 Independently assess the Council’s risk management arrangements 

 Review the adequacy of procedures by departments to assess, review and respond 
to risks 

 Review the effectiveness of the Councils system of internal control 

 Take a risk based approach to audit planning and consider the content of the risk 

registers when preparing the Annual Audit Plan 

Page 29



Page 6 of 16   
 

3 Risk Management Process 
 

3.1 The Council has a four-step process for its risk management process, and all four stages are 
fundamental to good risk management.  
 

3.2 Figure 1 below shows the four steps and the link to business objectives. 
 

 
Figure 1: The Four Steps of the Risk Management Cycle 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

Page 30



Page 7 of 16   
 

4 Risk Identification 

 
What is a Risk 

 
4.1 Risk is something that may have an impact on the achievement of our objectives.  

 
4.2 The Council faces risks from both internal and external factors. Understanding this helps us 

to assess the level of influence and control we may have over the risk. 
 

4.3 There are three main parts to a risk – an event that has a consequence that leads to an 
impact on the Council objectives – and it can be measured by estimating the likelihood of 
the event happening and impact it may have on the objectives if it does. 

 
Risk Categories 

 
4.4 It also helps to think of risk being driven by three basic categories: Strategic; Operational; 

and, Project.  
 
4.5 At Strategic levels, the focus is on identifying the key risks to successful achievements of the 

Councils overall objectives as set out in its Corporate Plan and its annual Action Plan. 
 
4.6 Operational risks are the risks that are most likely to affect the performance and delivery of 

business services. 
 

4.7 Project risks are the risks that are most likely to affect the successful delivery of a project. 
 

4.8 Risk categories are not mutually exclusive, and a risk may escalate from one to another. For 
example a risk which escalates to severe at project level which suggests there is a risk to 
project failure, may then create a risk at operational or strategic level. 
 

4.9 When identifying the risk, both positive and negative effects need to be considered. This will 
help with risk taking and exploiting opportunities.  

 
4.10 Insignificant risks can be ignored, significant risks can be planned for and the costs of taking 

action can be compared with the price to be paid if adverse events occur. 
 

Risk Influencers 
 
4.11 It can sometimes help to consider the different influencers of risk when considering the factors 

that may lead to a risk event occurring.  
 

4.12 A good way to think about this is by considering the common drivers of risk.  Figure 2 shows 
the common influences of risk. 

 
4.13 Using these, it is important to consider the things that could prevent or hinder the council from 

achieving its objectives. There does not need be too much focus on the categories, or what 
risk fits under which category, they are just a general guide to assist risk managers in 
considering what may impact the council. 
 

 

Page 31



 

 
 
 
 

Figure 2: Risk Influencers – PESTLE Model 
 

P
age 32



Page 9 of 16   
 

Determining Risk 
 
4.14 Once the influencers on the objectives are understood, risks can be determined. The 

thoughts and ideas then need to be grouped into common themes and developed into the 
actual risk. 
 

4.15 There should be three parts to a risks Event –> Consequence –> Impact. This will ensure 
that focus and action is placed on the event.  

 
4.16 When recording risks on the risk register, these three factors will be recorded, so risk 

managers must identify all three elements 
 
4.17 For example, Waste Services may identify the failure of the waste collection service due to 

environmental factors as a risk; 
 
Failure of the waste collection service due to inclement weather (the event) could lead to 
unacceptable delays in collecting refuse (the consequence) resulting in public health issue 
and loss of reputation (the impact). 
 

 
 

Page 33



Page 10 of 16   
 

5 Risk Assessment 
 
Types of Assessment 

 
5.1 There are two risk assessments undertaken on each risk: 

 
Table 1 – Risk Assessment Types 
 

Assessment Type Description 

Inherent Risk This is an assessment of the likelihood of the risk event 
happening, and of the impact to the councils objectives, if no 
controls or management measures are put in place.  
 
It helps understand the level of risk, and the level of 
management required. It also provides a baseline to compare 
against to understand the effectiveness of control measures. 
 

Residual Risk This is an assessment of the likelihood of the risk event 
happening, after management and control measures have 
been put into place.  
 
It helps risk managers, senior officers and members 
understand how the management and control measures impact 
on the likelihood and the impact of risk events. 
 

 
Assessing Inherent Risk 

 
5.2 Once a list of risks has been established, the next step is to assess those risks in terms of 

the likelihood that they will occur and the impact if they do.  
 

5.3 This provides an inherent risk score that will help identify the most serious risks before any 
controls have been applied. Decisions can then be made about the significance of those risks 
and how or whether they should be addressed. 
 

5.4 Consideration should be given to each of the identified risks and using the criteria in the 
likelihood table (section 5.14), assess the risk in terms of likelihood that it will occur. 
 

5.5 The risk manager should then assess the impact using the criteria in the impact table (section 
5.16) if it the risk event were to happen. 
 

5.6 When both the risk likelihood and impact have been assessed, the likelihood score should 
be multiplied by the impact score – this will give the inherent risk score. This is the score used 
to identify which risks are the most serious, allowing decisions to be made about the 
significance of those risks to the Council and how, or whether they should be addressed. 
 

5.7 The scoring methodology and risk appetite is set out in section 5.18.  
 
5.8 The Council has determined that inherent risks which score as “Acceptable”, no further work 

is required. However, it is important to reconsider these risks on a rolling basis, as inherent 
risk can change based upon impacts from risk influencers.  

 
Assessing Residual Risk 

 
5.9 For any risks with an inherent scoring of “Manageable” or above, risk managers will need to 

consider the control and management measures that can be put in place to reduce the 

Page 34



Page 11 of 16   
 

likelihood and/or impact of the risk event (see section 6). 
 

5.10 Once these control and management measures have been identified, the risk must be 
reassessed to determine the risk score after these controls and management actions are in 
place. This should demonstrate a reduction to the inherent risk level.  
 

5.11 Using the criteria in the likelihood table (section 5.14), the risk manager should assess the 
risk in terms of likelihood that it will occur, with the control and management measures in 
place. 
 

5.12 The risk manager should then assess the impact using the criteria in the impact table (section 
5.16) if it the risk event were to happen with the control and management measures in place. 
 

5.13 When both the risk likelihood and impact have been assessed, the likelihood score should 
be multiplied by the impact score – this will give the residual risk score.  
 

Likelihood 
 

5.14 Table 2 in this section sets out the definition, rating and descriptions used when assessing 
the likelihood of a risk event occurrence. 
 

5.15 There should be a focus on the description when assessing the level of likelihood and the 
number rating should be used to summaries the descriptive information in a numerical format. 

 

Table 2 – Likelihood Rating – Description and definitions 
 

Definition Rating Description / Likelihood Guidance 

 

Very Likely 
 

5 
 Regular occurrence 

 Circumstances frequently encountered 

 Possibility of occurrence more than 80% 

 

Likely 
 

4 
 Occasional occurrence 

 Circumstances have been encountered before 

 Possibility of occurrence between 50% and 80% 

 
Possible 

 
3 

 Likely to happen at some point in the next 3 years 

 Circumstance occasionally encountered 

 Possibility of occurrence between 10% and 50% 

 
Unlikely 

 
2 

 Only likely to happen once every 10 or more years 

 Circumstances rarely encountered 

 Low change of occurrence (under 10%) 

 
Remote 

 
1 

 Has never happened before 

 Circumstance never encountered 

 Negligible change of occurrence (under 2%) 

Page 35



Page 12 of 16   
 

Impact 

 
5.16 Table 3 in this section sets out the definition, rating and descriptions used when assessing 

the impact of a risk event occurrence. 
 

5.17 There should be a focus on the description when assessing the level of impact and the 
number rating should be used to summaries the descriptive information in a numerical format. 

Table 3 – Impact – Description and definitions 
 

Definition Rating   Indicative Guideline 

  Threat 

 
Catastrophic 

 
5 

 Major loss of service for more than 5 days 

 Severe disruption to the Council and its residents affecting the whole 
council 

 Major financial loss > £1,000,000 

 Loss of life, intervention by HSE 

 National news coverage 

 Likely successful judicial review or legal challenge of key Council decision 
 Major environmental damage 
 Loss of Assets or ICT incidents preventing continuation of service for more 

than 5 days 

 
Major 

 
4 

 Major loss of service for 2 to 5 days 

 Severe disruption to the Council and its residents affecting several parts of 
the council 

 Major financial loss > £100,000 

 Extensive/multiple injuries, intervention by HSE 

 National news coverage 

 Possible successful judicial review or legal challenge of Council decision 
 Major environmental damage 
 Loss of Assets or ICT incidents preventing continuation of service for 2 to 5 

days 

 
Significant  

 
3 

 Loss of service for up to 2 days 

 Serious disruption to the ability to service residents affected across one 
or two service areas areas of the council 

 Serious financial loss £50,000 to £100,000 

 Major injury, possible intervention by HSE 

 Local adverse news item/ professional press item 

 Likely judicial review or legal challenge of service specific decision 

 Serious damage to local environment 

 Loss of Assets or ICT incidents preventing continuation of service for 
under 2 days 

 

Serious 
 

2 
 Noticeable disruption to a service area 
 High financial loss £10,000 - £50,000 

 Injury to an individual  

 Local news/minor professional press item 

 Moderate damage to local environment 

 
Minor 

 
1 

 Brief disruption to service less than 1 day – minor or no loss of resident 
service 

 Low financial loss, less than £10,000 

 Minor / no injuries 

 Minimal news/press impact 

 Affects single team only 

 Minor/ no damage to local environment 

Page 36



Page 13 of 16   
 

Scoring and Appetite 
 

5.18 Table 4 in this section sets out the scoring methodology and risk rating (linked directly to the 
councils appetite to risk. 

 
Table 4 Risk Scoring Matrix  

 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 

Very Likely (5) 5 10 15 20 25 

Likely (4) 4 8 12 16 20 

Possible (3) 3 6 9 12 15 

Unlikely (2) 2 4 6 8 10 

Remote (1) 1 2 3 4 5 

 

 

 

Minor (1) Serious (2) Significant (3) Major (4) Catastrophic 
(5) 

 
5.19 Risks need to be managed within the Council’s risk appetite. Whatever the risk score, 

mitigating controls and actions need to be applied to manage the risk down. The Councils 
Risk Appetite is demonstrated as follows: 
 

Acceptable Manageable Serious Severe 

 
 

5.20 Section 8 of this framework sets out which level of risks will be reported, and to which groups.  
 

  

Page 37



Page 14 of 16   
 

6 Risk Management and Controls 
 

6.1 When all the risk and opportunities have been identified and assed for likelihood and impact, 
there needs to be agreement on who will own the risk and who the risk will be managed, 
controlled or exploited. 
 

6.2 There are three questions that will help: 
 

 Can the likelihood of occurrence be reduced? 

 Can the impact be reduced? 

 Can the consequences of the risk be changed? 
 

6.3 Tolerating the risk An organisation that recognises the value of risk management may 
accept that it might be appropriate to continue with an “at risk” activity because it will open 
up greater opportunities for the future, or perhaps limited things can be done to mitigate a 
risk. 
 
These risks must be monitored, and contingency plans should be put in place in case the 
risks occur. 
 

6.4 Treating the risk This is the most widely used approach. The purpose of treating a risk is to 
continue with the activity which gives rise to the risk, but to bring the risk to an acceptable 
level by taking action to control it in some way through either: 
 

 Containment actions, these lessen the likelihood of consequences of a risk and are 
applied before the risk materialises 

 Contingency actions, these are put in action after the risk has happened, thus 
reducing the impact. 

 
6.5 Terminating the risk Doing things differently and therefore removing the risk. This is 

particularly important in terms of project risk. 
 

6.6 Transferring the risk Sometimes a risk can be transferred to a third party, for example via 
insurance or by arranging for a third party to take the risk in another way. 
 

6.7 The cost of risk management and control of the risk should be proportionate to the risk that 
is being addressed. There is a need to; 
 

 Identify existing controls and actions plans that are in place. Develop new controls 
and action plans where none exist. 

 Identify and agree who will own and manage the. The risk manager should have 
authority to implement and manage the controls. 

 
6.8 When the existing controls and action plans have been identified, the risk can be re-assessed 

for likelihood and impact, to determine the residual risk score. 
 

6.9 All key controls and management measures should be recorded on the Councils Risk 
Register.  

Page 38



Page 15 of 16   
 

7 Risk Registers 
 

7.1 Risks should be recorded on the Councils Risk Register.  
 

7.2 The Risk Register is maintained on a single sharepoint list for operational and strategic risks, 
available to risk managers. A separate risk register is maintained as a single list for project 
risks.  

 
7.3 Risks should be updated on a monthly basis. This should include: 
 

 A review of the inherent risk where appropriate. Inherent risks may be influenced by 
the risk influencers, leading to an increase or decrease in the risk score.  

 A review of the residual risk where appropriate. Residual risks may be influenced by 
a failure in the control or management measures, or the risk influencers, leading to 
an increase or decrease in the risk score.  

 New narrative each reporting period. 
 

7.4 For each reporting period, the risk narrative should include: 
 

 A description to explain any changes to the inherent or residual risk scores.  

 A description to explain any additional control measures put in place, or any issues 
with the control measures that are in place 

 Any key activity undertaken in the previous reporting period, or upcoming reporting 
period. 

 A description to explain any new risks that have been added during the period, or for 
any risks that have been closed.  

 

 

Page 39



                 Page 16 of 16 
 

8 Risk Reporting 
 

Regular reporting for risk oversight and the management of risk will be as follows: 
 

Strategic Leadership Team Monthly 

Performance Clinic Quarterly 

Cabinet Quarterly 

Audit Committee Quarterly 

 
8.1 Reporting will include all strategic risks. Operational risks will be reported where the residual 

risk is “Serious” or “Severe”. The management of “Manageable” risks will be the responsibility 
of Directors and risk managers. 
 

8.2 Project Risks will be the responsibility of Project Sponsors and Managers. These should be 
transferred to Operational and Strategic risk registers where there is a likely impact on the 
Council’s ability to deliver its objectives.  
 

8.3 Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the Councils risk management arrangements.  
 

8.4 Directors should ensure that Executive Members are briefed where appropriate at monthly 
briefings to ensure they are aware of significant risks affecting their portfolios and any 
improvements in controls which are proposed. 

 
8.5 The production of the Annual Governance Statement signed by the Chief Executive and 

Leader of the Council at the end of each financial year, will report on the effectiveness of Risk 
Management and report on any governance issues. 

 
8.6 Other Corporate Groups will also oversee specific themed risks, such as Health and Safety 

Risks being overseen by the Operational Health and Safety Board, who will report significant 
matters to the Corporate Governance Group. 
 

Page 40



 

 

Page 1 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council  
Audit Committee Progress Report 

30 January 2023  
 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

Members are recommended to: 

 Note the Internal Audit Progress Report for the 
period to 13 January 2023 

 Note the implementation status of internal 
audit recommendations and the management 
update. 

  

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Page 2 
 

Contents 
 
1  Introduction and Background 

1.1  Purpose 
 1.2  Background 
 

2  Audit Plan Update 
2.1   Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Findings 
2.6   High Priority Recommendations 
2.8  Medium Priority Recommendations  

 2.10 Proposed Amendments 
 2.11 Performance Management 

2.15 Update on Current Plan Delivery Position  
 

 
Appendices 
 
A   Progress against the 2022/23 Audit Plan 
 
B   2022/23 Audit Plan Start Dates Agreed with 

Management 
 
C Implementation Status of High Priority 

Recommendations as at 13 January 2023 
 
D Implementation Status of Outstanding Medium 

Priority Recommendations as at 13 January 
2023 

 
E Assurance and Finding Definitions 2022/23 
 
  

Page 42



 

 

Page 3 
 

 

1. Introduction and Background 
 

Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 This report details: 
 
a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in delivering 

the Council’s Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 as at 13 January 
2023. 

b) In-Year Audit Plan review and proposed plan amendments. 
c) The implementation status of previously agreed audit recommendations. 
d) An update on performance indicators as at 13 January 2023. 

 
Background 

 
1.2 The 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee on 28 

March 2022. 
 
1.3 The Committee receives periodic updates of progress against the Annual 

Internal Audit Plan. This is the third report giving an update on the delivery of 
the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan. 

 
1.4 The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so that 

the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential component 
of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal audit provision is 
fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good practice that progress 
reports also include proposed amendments to the agreed annual audit plan. 
 

2. Audit Plan Update 
 
 Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings 
 
2.1 As at 13 January 2023, 56% of the 2022/23 Audit Plan days had been 

delivered. 
 

2.2 There have been eight final audit reports issued since the previous progress 
report, relating to the 2022/23 audit plan.  

 

Audit Title Assurance 
Opinion  

Recommendations 

Annual Governance Statement - 
Phase 1 - Advisory Report  

Not Assessed* None 

Annual Governance Statement - 
Phase 2 - Assurance Review 

Reasonable 1 Advisory Action 

Sopra Steria Contract (Part 1) Substantial None 

Statutory Compliance Reasonable 2 Medium Priority 

Page 43



 

 

Page 4 
 

Housing Maintenance Contract 
Mobalisation 

Substantial 1 Low Priority 

Member Training Reasonable 2 Low Priority 

DFG Certification Unqualified None 

Sopra Steria Contract (Part 2) Reasonable 1 Medium 

* Not Assessed = No assurance opinion provided as the project was consultancy based. 

 
2.3 In addition to completed projects summarised in 2.2, the following draft 

reports in the table below have been issued to management for comment, 
response, or approval to issue the final report (where a satisfactory 
management action plan has been received): 
 

Audit Title Status 

Planning Services Review 
Recommendations 

Draft Report Issued December 2022. 
Awaiting management response. 

Vaccine Uptake Draft Report Issued January 2023. 
Awaiting management response. 

 
 
2.4 The status of the one remaining audit from the Council’s 2021/22 audit plan is 

detailed below: 
 

Audit Title Status Assurance 
Opinion  

Recommendations 

Training 
Budgets 

Final Report 
Issued 

Reasonable 
4 Medium and 1 Low 
Priority 

 
 

2.5 In relation to the 2022/23 audit plan, the Audit Committee are reminded that 
SIAS will deliver all audits prioritised as ‘High’ in the approved Plan and will 
deliver at least ten projects prioritised as ‘Medium’. In addition, all IT audits 
will be completed. The outcomes of these projects will support the Chief Audit 
Executive in forming their overall annual opinion on the robustness of 
governance, risk management and internal control arrangements at the 
Council. 
 
High Priority Recommendations 
 

2.6 Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has been 
agreed by management; this includes an agreement to implement the 
recommendations that have been made. It is SIAS’s responsibility to bring to 
Members’ attention the implementation status of high priority 
recommendations; it is the responsibility of officers to implement the 
recommendations by the agreed date. 

 
2.7 No new high priority recommendations have been raised as a result of the 

work completed and reported in the tables at paragraphs 2.2 and 2.4. 
Therefore, there are no outstanding high priority recommendations. 
 

Page 44



 

 

Page 5 
 

Medium Priority Recommendations 
 

2.8 It has been agreed with Council management that SIAS will follow up all 
medium priority recommendations resulting from internal audit reports. There 
were five medium priority recommendations, due for follow up by the end of 
January, with two having been assigned as implemented.  
 

2.9 Appendix D details the implementation status of all ‘Medium’ priority 
recommendations that have not been fully implemented by the original target 
date. Appendix D has been abridged to fit this Progress Report, and the full 
database is maintained on a shared drive. This can be supplied by Council 
management on request, should it be required.  
 
 
Proposed Amendments 
 

2.10 There were no major plan amendments agreed with management within this 
reporting period.  
 
 
Performance Management: Reporting of Audit Plan Delivery Progress 

 
2.11 To help the Committee assess the current progress of the projects in the Audit 

Plan, we have provided an overall progress update of delivery against 
planned commencement dates at Appendix B. The table below shows that 
summary of performance based in the latest performance information 
reported at Appendix A. 
 

 
 
2.12 Annual performance indicators and associated targets were approved by the 

SIAS Board in March 2022. As at 13 January 2023, actual performance for 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council against the targets that can be monitored in 
year was as shown in the table below: 

 
 
 

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target 

Profiled 
Target to 13 

Actual to 13 
January 2023 

Status 
No of 

Audits at 
this Stage 

% of Total 
Audits (24 
minimum) 

Profile to 13 
January 2023 

Draft / Final Report Issued 11 42% (13/26) 

In Fieldwork / Quality Review 8 31% (5/26) 

Terms of Reference Issued / In Planning 5 19% (5/26) 

Not Yet Started 2 8% (3/26) 

Page 45



 

 

Page 6 
 

January 
2023 

1. Planned Days – percentage of 
actual billable days against planned 
chargeable days completed 
(excluding unused contingency) 

95% 
66% 

(197 / 298 
days) 

56% 
(165.5 / 298 days) 

2. Planned Projects – percentage 
of actual completed projects to draft 
report stage against planned 
completed projects 

95% 
50% 

(13 / 26 
projects) 

42% 
(11 / 26 projects) 

3. Client Satisfaction with 
Conduct of the Audit – percentage 
of client satisfaction questionnaires 
returned at ‘satisfactory’ level  

100% 100% 
100% 

(1 returned from 9 
issued) 

4. Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 

95% 95% 

No high priority 
recommendations 

have been made in 
2022/23 

 
2.13 In respect of delivery of Planned Days and Planned Projects, progress is 

slightly behind the profiled target for two of the 2022/23 audits. This relates to 
the homeless prevention grant funding audit as fieldwork was delayed due to 
availability of information. The cyber risk audit is currently at quality review 
stage and release of the draft report will take place in conjunction with the 
Phishing audit as requested by management.  
 

2.14 In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature.  
Performance against these targets will be reported on in the 2022/23 Head of 
Assurance’s Annual Report: 
 
 5. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting of each 

Audit Committee.  If there is no March meeting, then the plan should be 
prepared for the first meeting of the financial year. 

 6. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the Audit 

Committee’s first meeting of the civic year. 
 

 
Update on Current Plan Delivery Position 
 

2.15 As reported above, SIAS are currently behind profile for both billable days and 
projects delivered to draft report status. In respect of the above, 2022/23 has 
been a significantly challenging year for SIAS in relation to recruitment and 
retention, with as many as 6 FTE vacancies (36% of the establishment) during 
earlier periods of the financial year. Whilst this has now reduced to 4.5 FTE 
(25% of the establishment), the specialist nature of Internal Audit means that 
SIAS are competing with the private sector to recruit to our higher-level roles, 
and this has proved challenging given the pay constraints Local Authorities 

Page 46



 

 

Page 7 
 

operate under. In respect of the remaining vacancies, a recruitment campaign 
is currently in progress. 
 

2.16 As Committee Members will be aware, SIAS operates as a partnership. The 
current resource gap within the partnership is 200 days. Whilst this would 
normally be allocated to SIAS’s external partner, they have now reached their 
delivery and resourcing capacity for the financial year. SIAS have therefore 
recently completed a procurement process to commission two additional 
external partners for quarter four to complete the remaining projects, with both 
new external partners now in place and taking forward their allocated projects. 
 

2.17 It is also important to note the delivery profile is not straight line, with the 
profile often impacted by the required timing of some audits, or where 
Management have requested later start dates for audits, this outside the 
control of SIAS. When considering the current delivery position, it is important 
to note that any projects that have had specific key deadlines, such as Grant 
certifications, have been prioritised and agreed deadlines met. 
 

2.18 Based on current resource availability (including our external partners), we 
would be able to provide assurance to the Committee that all audits within 
2022/23 have been allocated for completion before the end of the financial 
year. However, should additional vacancies occur, SIAS experiences 
significant staff sickness, or there are client engagement issues in relation to 
the timing (or supporting the delivery) of audits, there would be a risk to the 
overall delivery of the 2022/23 audit plan. 
 

2.19 The above position is subject to continual monitoring, and we are currently 
satisfied that all available mitigating actions have been taken forward to 
manage the above risks, and that any uncompleted projects could be 
concluded during April and May 2023 to support the Annual Assurance 
Opinion if required. However, regular updates will be provided to both the 
Committee, SIAS Board and the Council’s Section 151 Officer as the 
remainder of the financial year progresses.   
 
 
 

 

Page 47



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2022/23 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 13 JANUARY 2023 

 

Page 8 
 

2022/23 SIAS Audit Plan 

AUDITABLE AREA 
LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD AUDITOR 
ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 

STATUS / 
COMMENTS 

C H M L 

High Priority Audits  

Annual Governance 
Statement - Phase 1 - 
Advisory Report  

Not Assessed    
 

10 SIAS 

3 Final Report Issued 

Annual Governance 
Statement - Phase 2 - 
Assurance Review 

Reasonable 0 0 0 
 

0 7 Final Report Issued 

Sopra Steria Contract (Part 1) Substantial 0 0 0 0 7 SIAS 7 Final Report Issued 

Statutory Compliance Reasonable 0 0 2 0 18 BDO 18 Final Report Issued 

Tenancy Fraud      12 BDO 1.5 In Fieldwork 

Performance Indicators      15 BDO 6.5 In Fieldwork 

Sopra Steria Contract (Part 2) Reasonable 0 0 1 0 6 SIAS 6 Final Report Issued 

Covid-19 Recovery      10 Mazars   

Sopra Steria Contract (Part 3)      6 SIAS 1 In Fieldwork 

Streetscene Contract 
Resilience 

    
 

10 SIAS 0.5 
Terms of Reference 

Issued 

Resilience      15 SIAS 0.5 In Planning 

Medium Priority Audits) – 6 audits nominated for Q1 and Q2 to date 

Housing Maintenance 
Contract Mobalisation 

Substantial 0 0 0 1 11 BDO 11 Final Report Issued 

Housing Maintenance 
Contract Mobalisation – 
Review of Process Mapping 

     6.5 BDO 1 In Planning 

Member Training Reasonable 0 0 0 2 8 BDO 8 Final Report Issued 

P
age 48



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2022/23 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 13 JANUARY 2023 

 

Page 9 
 

AUDITABLE AREA 
LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD AUDITOR 
ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 

STATUS / 
COMMENTS 

C H M L 

Vaccine Uptake      8 SIAS 8 Draft Report Issued 

Homelessness Prevention 
Grant Funding 

    
 

8 SIAS 4 In Fieldwork 

Voids Management      1.5 SIAS 1.5 Audit Cancelled 

Planning Services Review 
Recommendations 

    
 

8 SIAS 7.5 Draft Report Issued 

Revenues Discounts and 
Exemptions 

    
 

8 SIAS 2 In Fieldwork 

Grounds Maintenance 
Contract Management 

    
 

8 Veritau 2 
Terms of Reference 

Issued 

Procurement Cards      8 SIAS 1 In Planning 

Procurement Decision 
Making Process 

    
 

8 Mazars   

IT Audits  

Cyber Risk      15 BDO 12 Quality Review 

Phishing      10 BDO 8 In Fieldwork 

IT Hardware      10 BDO 5 In Fieldwork 

Shared Learning and Joint Reviews  

Shared Learning      2 SIAS 1.5  

Joint Reviews – 
Environmental Enforcement 

    
 

2 BDO 1 In Fieldwork 

Grant Claims / Charity Certification  

COMF Grant Certification Unqualified 0 0 0 0 1 SIAS 1 Final Report Issued 

DFG Certification Unqualified 0 0 0 0 2 SIAS 2 Final Report Issued 

Miscellaneous Grants      2 NYA   

Consultancy           

P
age 49



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2022/23 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 13 JANUARY 2023 

 

Page 10 
 

AUDITABLE AREA 
LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE 

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS 

LEAD AUDITOR 
ASSIGNED 

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED 

STATUS / 
COMMENTS 

C H M L 

Consultancy Assignments      5 NYA   

Contingency  

Contingency      2 NYA   

Client Management - Strategic Support  

CAE Internal Audit Opinion 
2021/22 

    
 

3 SIAS 3 Complete 

Audit Committee      6 SIAS 4.5 Through Year 

Performance Monitoring      8 SIAS 4 Through Year 

Client Liaison      8 SIAS 4 Through Year 

SIAS Development      5 SIAS 3.5 Through Year 

2023/24 Audit Planning      8 SIAS 2 Through Year 

Recommendations Follow Up      5 SIAS 3 Through Year 

2021/22 Carry Forward  

Completion of outstanding 
2021/22 projects 

    
 

14 SIAS 14 Completed 

Total    0 0 3 3 300  165.5  

 

Key / Notes 
Not Assessed = No assurance opinion provide as the project was either consultancy based or validation for compliance 
Unqualified – Assurance Opinion Provided for Grant or Accounts Certifications indicating the return provides a fair and true view and complies with funding 
conditions (in relation to grants) 
C = Critical Priority, H = High Priority, M = Medium Priority, L = Low Priority 
BDO = SIAS Audit Partner 
N/a = Not Applicable 
Audit Plan Days are a guide only and are not formally allocated. This is as per the approved 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan. 
 
 

P
age 50



APPENDIX B – 2022/23 AUDIT PLAN START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT 

 

Page 11 
 

 
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

H
 

Annual Governance Statement 
– Advisory Report (Final Report 
Issued) 

Sopra Steria Contract (Part 2) (Final 
Report Issued) 

Sopra Steria Contract (Part 3) (In 
Fieldwork) 

Tenancy Fraud (In Fieldwork) 

Annual Governance Statement 
– Assurance Review (Final 
Report Issued) 

Performance Indicators (In Fieldwork)  Covid-19 Recovery 

Sopra Steria Contract (Part 1) 
(Final Report Issued) 

  Streetscene Contract Resilience 
(Terms of Reference Issued) 

Statutory Compliance (Final 
Report Issued) 

  Resilience (In Planning) 

M
 

A minimum of 10 medium priority audits from the following  

Housing Maintenance Contract 
Mobilisation (Final Report 
Issued) 

Planning Services Review 
Recommendations (Draft Report Issued) 

Revenues Discounts and Exemptions (In 
Fieldwork) 

Housing Maintenance Contract 
Mobilisation – Process Mapping (In 
Planning) 

Member Training (Final Report 
Issued) 

Homelessness Prevention Grant Funding 
(In Fieldwork) 

 Grounds Maintenance Contract 
Management (Terms of Reference 
Issued) 

Vaccine Uptake (Draft Report 
Issued) 

 Procurement Cards (In Planning) 

 

Procurement Decision Making 
Process 

 

P
age 51



APPENDIX B – 2022/23 AUDIT PLAN START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT 

 

Page 12 
 

IT
 

 Cyber Risk (Quality Review) Phishing (In Fieldwork)  

IT Hardware (In Fieldwork) 

G
/C

 

COMF Grant (Final Report 
Issued) 

DFG Certification (Final Report Issued)   

O
 2021/22 Carry Forward 

(Completed) 
   

  
Key: 

H – High Priority: 100% of audits will be delivered 

M – Medium Priority: Ten of these audits will be delivered, Audit Committee to approve which audits will be delivered from this list.  

IT – IT Audits: 100% of IT audits will be delivered 

C – Consultancy: Assignments will be delivered as part of the audit plan 

G/C – Grant or charity certification to be completed as part of the audit plan 

O - Other         

P
age 52



APPENDIX C – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Page 13 
 

 
There are no high priority recommendations outstanding.

P
age 53



APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF OUTSTANDING MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Page 14 
 

Report 
Title and 
Date 

Recommendation Management Response Original 
Target 
Date 

Responding 
Officer 

Management Action 
Taken to Date  

Revised 
Target 
Date  

Implementation 
Status 

Housing 
Rents 
May 2022 

Rent Standard 
We recommend that a full review of all 
properties is carried out to ensure that 
the calculation of the rent standard is 
correct and to determine the full 
materiality of potential errors. Once 
this review has been completed, the 
Council should ensure that any errors 
are corrected for future rent setting 
periods. 

Agreed – as per recommendation 30/09/2022 Income and 
Home 
Ownership 
Manager  
 

September 2022 
Review currently taking 
place of formula rents 
against 1999 value.   
 
January 2023 
Review currently taking 
place. Extension 
requested until the end 
of February 2023. 

30/10/2022 
 
 
 
 
28/02/2023 

Partially 
Implemented 

P
age 54



APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF OUTSTANDING MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Page 15 
 

Report 
Title and 
Date 

Recommendation Management Response Original 
Target 
Date 

Responding 
Officer 

Management Action 
Taken to Date  

Revised 
Target 
Date  

Implementation 
Status 

Statutory 
Compliance 
November 
2022 

Health and Safety Compliance data is 
not accurately recorded 
The Council should ensure that 
monthly audits are undertaken of all 
manual workbooks to verify any 
erroneous entries, correcting these 
accordingly. This will ensure that the 
workbooks are correct for the 
purposes of compliance, future 
inspections and reporting purposes. 
Supplementary documentation (i.e. 
images) should also be attached 
alongside inspection paperwork for 
audit purposes. 

We are currently in the process of 
putting a new asset system in 
place which will go live with gas 
and electric compliance on 1st 
November 2022. We will then be 
adding Fire and Asbestos to the 
system. This will alleviate the 
manual process and the potential 
for human error. We will be 
continuing with the manual 
processes until January 2023 to 
ensure any issues identified with 
the new system does not affect 
compliance. 
 
There will be audits completed 
monthly internally from the Health 
and Safety team to give assurance 
on the progress of the 
programmes this will include 
screen shots and images of the 
works audited. 

31/01/2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30/11/2022 

Compliance 
Manager 

January 2023 
The team have gone live 
with Gas and Electric 
Servicing, and are in the 
processes of 
implementing Asbestos 
and Fire Risk Assessment 
and this is anticipated to 
be Live by the end of 
February 2023. 
 
The team will then move 
on the adding Projects 
and options appraisal in 
readiness for the New 
Financial year in April 
2023. 
 

31/03/2023 Partially 
implemented 

P
age 55



APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF OUTSTANDING MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Page 16 
 

Report 
Title and 
Date 

Recommendation Management Response Original 
Target 
Date 

Responding 
Officer 

Management Action 
Taken to Date  

Revised 
Target 
Date  

Implementation 
Status 

Statutory 
Compliance 
November 
2022 

Remedial Actions 
All actions should be recorded on the 
tracker, reviewed as part of a regular 
data quality audit and the source of 
actions that are additional to the risk 
assessment recommendations should 
be stated in the tracker for audit trail 
purposes. 
 

All remedial works will be raised 
on new system to negate the need 
for trackers. 
Completion information and 
evidence will be added once works 
are completed. All WHBC 
Compliance and repairs staff will 
have tablets that link directly to 
the asset and housing system so 
works can be raised directly from 
site and photographic evidence 
can taken and uploaded directly to 
the system. All actions found by 
WHBC staff will be raised 
separately to remedial works 
raised through risk 
assessments/servicing. 
 
There will be audits completed 
monthly internally from the Health 
and Safety team to give assurance 
on the progress of the remedial 
actions and accuracy of the data.  

31/01/2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30/11/2022 

Compliance 
Manager 

January 2023 
Actions are on target to 
be delivered. Tablets are 
due to be implemented 
the week commencing 23 
January 2023 with staff 
training, with go-live 
schedules for the 
following week. 

03/02/2023 Nearly 
implemented 

  

P
age 56



APPENDIX E – ASSURANCE AND FINDINGS DEFINITIONS 2022/23 

 

Page 17 
 

 Audit Opinions 

 Assurance Level Definition 
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 O

p
in

io
n

s
 

Substantial 
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable 
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for 
improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Limited 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 
management and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No 
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk 
management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Not Assessed 
This opinion is used in relation to consultancy or embedded assurance activities, where the nature of the work is to provide support and 
advice to management and is not of a sufficient depth to provide an opinion on the adequacy of governance or internal control 
arrangements. Recommendations will however be made where required to support system or process improvements.   

G
ra

n
t 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n
 Unqualified 

No material matters have been identified in relation the eligibility, accounting and expenditure associated with the funding received that 
would cause SIAS to believe that the related funding conditions have not been met. 

Qualified 
Except for the matters identified within the audit report, the eligibility, accounting and expenditure associated with the funding received 
meets the requirements of the funding conditions. 

Disclaimer Opinion 
Based on the limitations indicated within the report, SIAS are unable to provide an opinion in relation to the Council’s compliance with 
the eligibility, accounting and expenditure requirements contained within the funding conditions. 

Adverse Opinion 
Based on the significance of the matters included within the report, the Council have not complied with the funding conditions 
associated with the funding received. 

   

 Finding Priority Levels 

 Priority Level Definition 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

Critical 
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources 
and / or compliance with regulations. Management action to implement the appropriate controls is required immediately. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

High 
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if untreated by management intervention, is 
highly likely to put achievement of core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently. 

Medium 
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put achievement of some of the core service 
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a timely manner. 

Low  
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will enhance the control environment. The 
appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as is practically possible. 

 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Welwyn Hatfield
Borough Council
Audit planning report

Year ended 31 March 2022

January 2023

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 10



2

Private and Confidential

30th Jan 2023

Dear Audit Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Audit Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 21/22 audit in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned
with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for Council, and outlines our planned
audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 30th January 2023 as well as understand whether there are other matters which
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Andrew Brittain

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Welwyn Hatfield Borough
Council
The Campus
Welwyn Garden City
Hertfordshire
AL8 6AE

P
age 60



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It
summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated July 2021)” issued by the PSAA (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/terms-of-appointment-and-further-
guidance-1-july-2021/) sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and
covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit Committee and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Audit Committee and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee and management of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have
formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our
2021/22 audit
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit
materiality04 Scope of our

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit
timeline07 Independence08

Value for
Money risks03

V
F
M

P
age 61

https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/)
https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/terms-of-appointment-and-further-guidance-1-july-2021/


4

Overview of our 2021/22 audit
strategy01 01

P
age 62



5

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud risk No change in risk or
focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. In addition to our overall response,
we consider where these risks may manifest themselves and identify separate
fraud risks as necessary below.

Misstatements due to fraud or error –
capitalisation of revenue expenditure

Fraud risk No change in risk or
focus

In considering how the risk of management override may present itself, we
conclude that this is primarily through management taking action to override
controls and manipulate in year financial transactions that impact the medium to
longer term projected financial position. A key way of improving the revenue
position is through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure. The
Council has a significant fixed asset base and a material capital programme and
therefore has the potential to materially impact the revenue position through
inappropriate capitalisation.

Understatement of Provisions
(excluding allowance for doubtful
debts and expected credit losses)

Fraud risk Slight change in
focus

The revised ISA 540 (Estimates standard) requires auditors to consider inherent
risks associated with the production of accounting estimates. These could relate,
for example, to the complexity of the method applied, subjectivity in the choice of
data or assumptions or a high degree of estimation uncertainty. As part of this,
auditors consider risk on a spectrum (from low to high inherent risk) rather than a
simplified classification of whether there is a significant risk or not. At the same
time, we expect the number of significant risks we report in respect of accounting
estimates to increase as a result of the revised guidance in this area.
In considering how the risk of management override may present itself, we
conclude that another opportunity for management to override controls and
manipulate the financial position is through the understatement of provisions.

WHBC has a material provisions balance (£2.5m as at 31st March 2022).
Judgment is used in valuation of the provision and with high financial pressures to
stay within budget, management have an incentive to manipulate provisions to
reduce the revenue impact.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit Committee with an
overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.

P
age 63



6

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Dwelling Assets Valuation Inherent risk No change in risk or
focus

The council undertakes physical inspections of Dwelling assets at least every five
years. No inspections are due for the 2021/22 accounts. Due to the number of
dwelling assets and the value involved, error in beacon classification may result in
material differences.

Pension valuation and disclosures Inherent risk No change in risk or
focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to
make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in which it is an admitted body.

The Council’s current pension fund deficit is a material and sensitive item and the
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by
the Actuary. Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and
judgement and due to the nature, volume and size of the transactions, in the
current uncertain economic environment, we consider this to be a higher inherent
risk.

Understatement of allowance for
doubtful debts (including expected
credit losses)

Significant risk Slight change in
focus

The revised ISA 540 (Estimates standard) requires auditors to consider inherent
risks associated with the production of accounting estimates. These could relate,
for example, to the complexity of the method applied, subjectivity in the choice of
data or assumptions or a high degree of estimation uncertainty. As part of this,
auditors consider risk on a spectrum (from low to high inherent risk) rather than a
simplified classification of whether there is a significant risk or not. In considering
how the risk of management override may present itself, we conclude that
another opportunity for management to override controls and manipulate the
financial position is through the understatement of the allowance.
WHBC has a material provision for doubtful debts and impairment allowance for
bad debts totalling £4.9m. Judgment is used in valuation of the provision and with
high financial pressures to stay within budget, management have an incentive to
manipulate provisions to reduce the revenue impact.

Valuation of property, including
investment properties

Significant risk No change in risk or
focus

Valuation of land and property assets is a significant accounting estimate that, in
the context of an uncertain economic environment, has a material impact on the
financial statements. The council commissions property valuation specialists to
determine asset valuations and small changes in assumptions when valuing these
assets can have a material impact on the financial statements and therefore the
balances are susceptible to misstatement.

P
age 64



7

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Materiality

Audit
differences

£0.13m

Materiality has been set at £2.63m, which represents 2% of the gross expenditure on provision of services presented in the draft 21/22
financial statements.

Performance materiality has been set at £1.97m, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement,
housing revenue account, collection fund, and firefighters’ pension fund financial statements) greater
than £0.13m.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the
attention of the Audit Committee.

Planning
materiality

£2.63m Performance
materiality

£1.97m

P
age 65



8

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy
Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

 Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2022 and
of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

 Our commentary on your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of resources for the relevant period. We include further details on VFM in Section 03.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

 Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
 Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
 The quality of systems and processes;
 Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
 Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to independently assess the risks associated with
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not kept pace with
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9 and 15 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the ISA 540 (revised) and
the value for money conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these or any other risks are relevant in the context of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s audit, we will
discuss these with management as to the impact on the scale fee.

Effects of climate-related matters on financial statements and Value for Money arrangements
Public interest in climate change is increasing. We are mindful that climate-related risks may have a long timeframe and therefore while risks exist, the impact on the
current period financial statements may not be immediately material to an entity. It is nevertheless important to understand the relevant risks to make this evaluation. In
addition, understanding climate-related risks may be relevant in the context of qualitative disclosures in the notes to the financial statements and value for money
arrangements.
We make inquiries regarding climate-related risks on every audit as part of understanding the entity and its environment. As we re-evaluate our risk assessments
throughout the audit, we continually consider the information that we have obtained to help us assess the level of inherent risk.

P
age 66



9

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy
Value for money conclusion

We include details in Section 03 but in summary:

 We are required to consider whether the Council has made ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

 Planning on value for money and the associated risk assessment is focused on gathering sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the
Council’s arrangements, to enable us to draft a commentary under three reporting criteria (see below). This includes identifying and reporting on any significant
weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations.

 We will provide a commentary on the Council’s arrangements against three reporting criteria:
 Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;
 Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and
 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and

delivers its services.

 The commentary on VFM arrangements will be included in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Timeline

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government established regulations to extend the target date for publishing audited local authority accounts from 31
July to 30 September, for a period of two years (i.e. covering the audit of the 2020/21 and 2021/22 accounting years).

In December 2021, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) announced proposals to extend the target date for the publication of audited
accounts to 30 November for 2021/22.  The delays to the completion of the 20/21 audit have meant it was not possible to commence the 21/22 audit until a point after
the target date had passed.  This has been appropriately disclosed on the Council’s website in line with the Regulations in place.

In Section 07 we include a provisional timeline for the audit.

Audit team changes

Key changes to our team.
Engagement Manager
Oliver Randall

P
age 67



10

Audit risks02 01

P
age 68



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place
to address those risks.

• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of
management’s processes for safeguarding against fraud.

• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed
to address the risk of fraud.

Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud
risks, including:
• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general

ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial
statements

• Assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, and
• Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

In addition to our overall response, we consider where these risk may
manifest themselves and identify separate fraud risks as necessary below

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
would otherwise appear to be operating
effectively.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error*

P
age 69



12

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What will we do?

In terms of the overall response, we will:

• Identify fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Inquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in

place to address those risks.
• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of

management’s processes over fraud.
• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to

address the risk of fraud.

We will take a substantive approach to respond to the specific risk,
undertaking the following procedures related to the incorrect capitalisation
of revenue expenditure:

• Test a sample of capital expenditure at a lower testing threshold to
verify that revenue costs have not been inappropriately capitalised;

• As part of our journal testing strategy, we will review unusual journal
pairings related to capital expenditure posted around the year-end i.e.
where the debit is to capital expenditure and the credit to income and
expenditure

What is the risk?

In considering how the risk of management
override may present itself, we conclude that
this is primarily through management taking
action to override controls and manipulate in
year financial transactions that impact the
medium to longer term projected financial
position. A key way of improving the revenue
position is through the inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue expenditure. The
Council has a significant fixed asset base and a
material capital programme and therefore has
the potential to materially impact the revenue
position through inappropriate capitalisation.

Misstatement due to fraud or
error – capitalisation of
revenue expenditure*

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in
relation to capitalisation of revenue
expenditure could affect the
comprehensive income and
expenditure account and the
balance sheet by decreasing
revenue expenditure and
increasing capital expenditure.

Amounts reported in the 2021/22
financial statements were:

Gross Expenditure (cost of
services):
£121.2 million

Capital additions (reported in Note
14): £44.9 million

P
age 70



13

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What will we do?

We will respond to this risk by:

• Considering the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the
adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional
capabilities and the results of their work;

• Consulting with the EY Estates team on significant assets
• Sample testing key asset information used by the valuers in performing

their valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per
square metre);

• Considering the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have
been valued within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code
for PPE and annually for IP. We have also considered if there are any
specific changes to assets that have occurred and that these have been
communicated to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2021/22 to confirm that the
remaining asset base is not materially misstated;

• Considering changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most
recent valuation; and

• Testing accounting entries and disclosure requirements have been
correctly processed in the financial statements,

What is the risk?

Valuation of land and property assets is a
significant accounting estimate that, in the
context of an uncertain economic environment,
has a material impact on the financial
statements. The council commissions property
valuation specialists to determine asset
valuations and small changes in assumptions
when valuing these assets can have a material
impact on the financial statements and
therefore the balances are susceptible to
misstatement.

Valuation of property,
including investment
properties

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in the
valuation of properties revalued in
year (£80.9m) or where properties
are not revalued in year and a
material change in value may have
occurred (£45m)

P
age 71



14

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What will we do?

We will respond to this risk by:

• Comparing provisions made in 2020/21 against provisions made in
2021/22 and obtaining robust explanations and supporting evidence
for any material movements

• Placing reliance on the work of management’s specialist and reviewing
the calculation of the NDR appeals provision to supporting evidence,
and assessing the reasonableness of the calculation.

• Test management’s process-assumptions by evaluating the significant
assumptions, individually and in the aggregate, used to develop the
estimate to determine whether:

• The significant assumption is appropriate in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework

• Changes from the prior periods, if any, are appropriate
• Judgments made in selecting the significant assumption give

rise to indicators of possible management bias
• As part of our journal testing strategy, we will review unusual journals

related to provisions around the year-end; for example where the debit
is to provisions and the credit to expenditure.

What is the risk?

The revised ISA 540 (Estimates standard)
requires auditors to consider inherent risks
associated with the production of accounting
estimates. These could relate, for example, to
the complexity of the method
applied, subjectivity in the choice of data or
assumptions or a high degree of estimation
uncertainty. As part of this, auditors consider
risk on a spectrum (from low to high inherent
risk) rather than a simplified classification of
whether there is a significant risk or not. At the
same time, we expect the number of significant
risks we report in respect of accounting
estimates to increase as a result of the revised
guidance in this area.

In considering how the risk of management
override may present itself, we conclude that
another opportunity for management to
override controls and manipulate the financial
position is through the understatement of
provisions.

WHBC has a number of material provisions
(£2.5m as at 31st March 2022). Judgment is
used in valuation of the provision and with high
financial pressures to stay within budget,
management have  an incentive to manipulate
provisions to reduce the revenue impact.

Understatement of Provisions
(excluding allowance for
doubtful debts and expected
credit losses)

P
age 72



15

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What will we do?

We will respond to this risk by:

• Comparing provisions made in 2020/21 against provisions made in
2021/22 and obtaining robust explanations and supporting evidence
for any material movements

• Comparing the full debtors listing to the bad debt provision to
investigate areas where  no provision or a low % provision has been
made.

• Comparing % provided in each debtors category to other similar
authorities that we have access to through our audit network to assess
whether percentages are in line with the market and that the Council
are not aggressively understating the bad debt provision.

• Sample testing payments from the post YE- bank statements at a lower
testing threshold for periods closed to the year end to identify any
liabilities not accounted for within the financial statements.

• Test management’s process-assumptions by evaluating the significant
assumptions, individually and in the aggregate, used to develop the
estimate to determine whether:

• The significant assumption is appropriate in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework

• Changes from the prior periods, if any, are appropriate
• Judgments made in selecting the significant assumption give

rise to indicators of possible management bias
• As part of our journal testing strategy, we will review unusual journals

related to provisions around the year-end; for example where the debit
is to provisions and the credit to expenditure.

What is the risk?

The revised ISA 540 (Estimates standard)
requires auditors to consider inherent risks
associated with the production of accounting
estimates. These could relate, for example, to
the complexity of the method
applied, subjectivity in the choice of data or
assumptions or a high degree of estimation
uncertainty. As part of this, auditors consider
risk on a spectrum (from low to high inherent
risk) rather than a simplified classification of
whether there is a significant risk or not. At the
same time, we expect the number of significant
risks we report in respect of accounting
estimates to increase as a result of the revised
guidance in this area.

In considering how the risk of management
override may present itself, we conclude that
another opportunity for management to
override controls and manipulate the financial
position is through the understatement of
provisions.
WHBC has a material Provision for doubtful
debts and Impairment allowance for bad debts
totalling £4.9m. Previously, the risk of
understatement here was couple with the risk
described on the previous slide (Understatement
of Provisions). This year the audit team has
tweaked the focus on these risks by
disaggregating the estimates made by the
council due to the differences in assumptions
made in the preparation of the provisions and
allowances. Judgment is used in valuation of the
provision and with high financial pressures to
stay within budget, management have  an
incentive to manipulate provisions to reduce the
revenue impact.

Understatement of allowance
for doubtful debts (including
expected credit losses)

P
age 73



16

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Pension Valuation and Disclosures

The Local Authority Accounting Code of
Practice and IAS19 require the Council to
make extensive disclosures within its
financial statements regarding the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in
which it is an admitted body.

The Council’s current pension fund deficit
is a material and sensitive item and the
Code requires that this liability be
disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet.

The information disclosed is based on the
IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the
Actuary. Accounting for this scheme
involves significant estimation and
judgement and due to the nature, volume
and size of the transactions, in the
current uncertain economic environment,
we consider this to be a higher inherent
risk.

We will respond to this risk by:

• Liaising with the auditors of the Hertfordshire Pensions Fund Authority to obtain assurances over the information
supplied to the actuary in relation to the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council.

• Assessing the conclusions drawn on the work of the actuary, Hymans Robertson, by the Consulting Actuary, PWC, who
are commissioned by the National Audit Office, including the use of our own pensions specialists; and

• Reviewing and testing the accounting entries and disclosures made in relation to IAS19.

• Engaging EY Pension specialists to review the reasonableness of the year-end liabilities recognised, by carrying out roll
forward calculations related to the accounting numbers provided and reconcile the prior year pension liability figure
with those at the current year end.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 74



17

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Dwelling Assets Valuation

Due to the number of dwelling assets and
the value involved, error in beacon
classification may result in material
differences.

We will respond to this risk by:

• A review of the grouping of all beacon categories to ensure that grouped beacon categories (i.e. those given the same
valuation) are sufficiently similar to justify the grouping;

• A sample test of individual properties to ensure that their valuations are appropriate; and

• A reperformance of the application of the social housing discount factor to gross valuations for the population as a
whole, to ensure the correct social housing discount factor has been applied.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 75



18

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 76



19

Value for Money

Council/Authority’s responsibilities for value for money

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding
and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with the financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on the governance framework and how
this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing the governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its own
individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance issued in
support of that framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on arrangements for securing value for money from the use of resources.

V
F
M

Auditor responsibilities

Under the NAO Code of Audit Practice we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place
‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. The
Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable
them to report to the Council a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the
arrangements the Council has in place to secure value for money through economic, efficient and
effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

 Financial sustainability - How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue
to deliver its services.

 Governance - How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its
risks.

 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the Council uses information about its costs
and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

Arrangements for
securing value for money

Financial
Sustainability

Improving
Economy,

Efficiency &
Effectiveness

Governance

P
age 77



20

Value for Money
Planning and identifying risks of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

The NAO’s guidance notes requires us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the Council’s
arrangements, in order to enable us  to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any significant
weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations.

In considering the Council’s arrangements, we are required to consider:
• The Council’s governance statement;
• Evidence that the Council’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period;
• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts;
• The work of inspectorates and other bodies; and
• Any other evidence source that we regards as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties.

We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the assessment
of what constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant weakness in
arrangements is a matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it:
• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the Council to significant financial loss or risk;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the Council’s reputation;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or
• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on

action/improvement plans.

We should also be informed by a consideration of:
• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the Council;
• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves (where applicable), or impact on budgets or

cashflow forecasts;
• The impact of the weakness on the Council’s reported performance;
• Whether the issue has been identified by the Council’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned;
• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review;
• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State;
• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue;
• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and
• The length of time the Council has had to respond to the issue.

V
F
M

P
age 78



21

Value for Money
Responding to identified risks of significant weakness

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to
determine whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, challenge
of management’s assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the audit committee.

V
F
M

Reporting on VFM
Where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources the Code
requires that we should refer to this by exception in the audit report on the financial statements.

In addition, the Code requires us to include the commentary on arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report. The Code states that the commentary should be
clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the Council’s attention or the wider public. This should include details of any
recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our view as to whether they have been implemented
satisfactorily.

Status of our 2021/22 VFM planning

We have completed our initial VFM (value for money) risk planning work, where we have considered:

• Our entity level controls and understanding the business assessment

• The Council’s Risk Register

• The Annual Governance Statement

• Council meeting minutes

• Our planning meetings with management

• Key financial and budget information

• Key performance reports

• Internal audit reports

• Information from local, national and specialist media

• Findings of other inspectorates, review agencies and other relevant bodies.

We have identified no potential significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements that the Council did not have proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources at that time.

P
age 79



22

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 80



23

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2021/22 has been set at £2.6m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s gross expenditure on provision of services. It will be
reassessed throughout the audit process. We have provided supplemental information
about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£131m
Planning

materiality

£2.63m

Performance
materiality

£1.97m
Audit

differences

£0.13m

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at £1.9m which
represents 75% of planning materiality.

Component performance materiality range – Component performance
materiality as a percentage of Group performance materiality based on risk
and relative size to the Group.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. The same threshold for
misstatements is used for component reporting. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account
and collection fund financial statements that have an effect on income or
that relate to other comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the audit
committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

Specific materiality – We have set a materiality of £1k for remuneration
disclosures , related party transactions, members’ allowances and exit
packages which reflects our understanding that an amount less than our
materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the financial
statements in relation to this.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit Committee confirm its understanding of, and agreement to,
these materiality and reporting levels.

Component
performance
materiality

£0.13m

P
age 81



24

Audit materiality

Materiality
The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all the
circumstances that might ultimately influence our judgement. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could be significant
to users of the financial statements, including the total effect of any audit misstatements, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

We also identify areas where misstatement at a lower level than our overall materiality level might influence the reader and develop an audit strategy specific to these
areas, including:
• Remuneration disclosures including councillor allowances: we will agree all disclosures back to source data, and councillor allowances to the agreed and approved

amounts.
• Related party transactions we will test the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to supporting evidence.

P
age 82



25

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 83



26

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice, our principal objectives are to undertake work to support the provision of our audit report to the audited body and to satisfy
ourselves that the audited body has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by
the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit:

Our opinion on the financial statements:
• whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the audited body and its expenditure and income for the period in question;

and
• whether the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the relevant accounting and reporting framework as set out in legislation,

applicable accounting standards or other direction.

Our opinion on other matters:
• whether other information published together with the audited financial statements is consistent with the financial statements; and
• where required, whether the part of the remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting and reporting

framework.

Other procedures required by the Code:
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

As outlined in Section 03, we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on
its use of resources and report a commentary on those arrangements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 84



27

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls;
• Reliance on the work of other auditors (Hertfordshire Pension Fund auditor);
• Reliance on the work of experts in relation to areas such as pensions and property valuations; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

Our audit strategy will, as in previous years, have a fully substantive approach.  This will involve testing the figures within the financial statements rather than looking
to place reliance on the controls within the financial systems. We still assess this as the most efficient way of carrying out our work.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Audit Committee.

Internal audit:
As in prior years, we will review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports from any other
work completed in the year, in our detailed audit planning, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the year-end financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 85



28

Audit team06 01

P
age 86



29

Audit team

Audit team
Audit team structure:

Andrew Brittain
Partner

Oliver Randall
Engagement Manager

EY Pensions EY Real Estates

Nomalanga Manzana
Senior

P
age 87



30

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings
Management specialist - valuers employed by the Council, Avison Young and District Valuers

Auditor specialists – EY Real Estate

Pensions disclosure
Management specialist - Actuary, Hymans Robertson

Auditor specialist – EY Pensions will review the work commissioned by the NAO for local government pension funds

Fair Value Investment Measurement Management specialist - Arlingclose

NNDR Appeals Provision Management specialist – Analyse Local

P
age 88



31

Developing the right Audit Culture

“A series of company collapses linked
to unhealthy cultures…..have

demonstrated why cultivating a
healthy culture, underpinned by the

right tone from the top, is
fundamental to business success.”

Sir John Thompson
Chief Executive of the FRC

Our audit culture is the cement that binds together the
building blocks and foundation of our audit strategy. We have
been thoughtful in articulating a culture that is right for us:
one that recognises we are part of a wider, global firm and is
clear about whose interests our audits serve.

There are three elements underpinning our culture:

1. Our people are focused on a common purpose. It is vital
we foster and nurture the values, attitudes and
behaviours that lead our people to do the right thing.

2. The essential attributes of our audit business are:
• Right resources — We team with competent people,

investing in audit technology, methodology and support
• Right first time — Our teams execute and review their

work, consulting where required to meet the required
standard

• Right reward — We align our reward and recognition to
reinforce the right behaviours

3. The six pillars of Sustainable Audit Quality are implemented.

Tone at the top
The internal and external messages sent by EY
leadership, including audit partners, set a clear tone at
the top - they establish and encourage a commitment to
audit quality

Exceptional talent

Specific initiatives support EY auditors in devoting time to
perform quality work, including recruitment, retention,
development and workload management

Accountability
The systems and processes in place help EY people take
responsibility for carrying out high-quality work at all times,
including their reward and recognition

01

02

03

Audit technology and digital

The EY Digital Audit is evolving to set the standard for the
digital-first way of approaching audit, combining leading-edge
digital tools, stakeholder focus and a commitment to quality

Simplification and innovation
We are simplifying and standardising the approach used by EY
auditors and embracing emerging technologies to improve the
quality, consistency and efficiency of the audit

04

05

Enablement and quality support
How EY teams are internally supported to manage their
responsibility to provide high audit quality

06

A critical part of this culture is that our people are encouraged and
empowered to challenge and exercise professional scepticism
across all our audits. However, we recognise that creating a culture
requires more than just words from leaders. It has to be reflected in
the lived experience of all our people each and every day enabling
them to challenge themselves and the companies we audit.

Each year we complete an audit quality culture assessment to obtain
feedback from our people on the values and behaviours they
experience, and those they consider to be fundamental to our audit
quality culture of the future. We action points that arise to ensure
our culture continues to evolve appropriately.

In July 2021, EY established a UK Audit Board (UKAB) with a
majority of independent Audit Non-Executives (ANEs). The
UKAB will support our focus on delivering high-quality audits
by strengthening governance and oversight over the culture
of the audit business. This focus is critical given that audit
quality starts with having the right culture embedded in the
business.

We bring our culture alive by investing in
three priority workstreams:
• Audit Culture with a focus on

professional scepticism
• Adopting the digital audit
• Standardisation

This investment has led to a number of
successful outputs covering training, tools,
techniques and additional sources. Specific
highlights include:
• Audit Purpose Barometer
• Active Scepticism Framework
• Increased access to external sector

forecasts
• Forensic risk assessment pilots
• Refreshed PLOT training and support

materials, including embedding in new
hire and trainee courses

• Digital audit training for all ranks
• Increased hot file reviews and improved

escalation processes
• New work programmes issued on auditing

going concern, climate, impairment,
expected credit losses, cashflow
statements and conducting effective
group oversight

• Development of bite size, available on
demand, task specific tutorial videos

2021 Audit Culture Survey result
A cultural health score of 78%  (73%) was

achieved for our UK Audit Business

P
age 89



32

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 90



33

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2021/22
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit Committee and we will discuss them with the Audit Committee Chair as
appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes.

November – December

Walkthrough of key systems and
processes

December

VFM planning December

Testing of valuations and key
accounting judgements

January Audit Committee meeting Audit Planning Report

Year end audit/ VFM conclusion February

Audit Completion procedures March Audit Committee meeting Audit Results Report

Audit opinion and completion certificates
Conclusion of reporting March Annual Audit Letter

P
age 91



34

Independence08 01

P
age 92



35

Introduction

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in December 2019, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit/additional services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Details of any non-audit/additional services to a UK PIE audit client where there are differences of

professional opinion concerning the engagement between the Ethics Partner and Engagement Partner and
where the final conclusion differs from the professional opinion of the Ethics Partner

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;

► Details of all breaches of the IESBA Code of Ethics, the FRC Ethical Standard and professional standards,
and of any safeguards applied and actions taken by EY to address any threats to independence; and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

P
age 93



36

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we have an investment in the Council; where we receive
significant fees in respect of non-audit services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of
writing, there are no long outstanding fees

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Andrew Brittain, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

P
age 94



37

Independence

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

EY Transparency Report 2021

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained. Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual
Transparency Report which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2022: EY UK 2022 Transparency
Report | EY UK

P
age 95

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report


38

Appendices09 01

P
age 96



39

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee
2021/22

Scale fee
2020/21

Final Fee
2020/21

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 74,921
(Note 4) 47,921 100,941

(Note 1)
Total audit TBC 47,921 74,921
Other non-audit services -
Housing Benefits N/A N/A TBC

(Note 2)
Other non-audit services –
Housing pooling N/A N/A TBC

(Note 3)
Total other non-audit services N/A N/A TBC
Total fees N/A N/A TBC

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local
Government.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements of
the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

 Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

 Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

 Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

 The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and
formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

(1) The 20/21 Code work includes an additional fee of £53,020, for additional
work related to group audit work, additional value for money work, elector
correspondence, change in valuation method of PPE, response to Covid-19, and
changes in work required to address professional and regulatory requirements. We
have agreed the variation with officers, and it has been approved by the PSAA.

(2) The 20/21 housing benefit work is yet to be completed. The base fee is
£9,975, with a fee range of £1,000 to £4,000 for each set of extended testing
required.

(3) The 20/21 housing pooling work is yet to be completed. The fee is expected to
be in the range of £4,000 to £5,000.

(4) For 2021/22 the scale fee represents the base fee, which we have
revised on an ongoing and recurring basis, by the £27,000 previously
agreed for 2019/20 and 2020/21, as the regulatory changes remain in
force. The fee can also be impacted by factors as set out below that would
result in additional work not considered in the setting of the (revised) scale
fee. At this stage of our planning we are not able to quantify any additional
work or fee, but we will discuss this with management as our audit
progresses and the scope and scale of any additional work can be clarified.

 Additional work that will be required to address the updated requirements of
the Value for Money code

 Additional work to address the requirements of the updated ISA 540 -
Estimates and ISA 570 – Going Concern auditing standards.

 Additional work required on component entity, Now Housing Limited

P
age 97



40

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in
the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.
When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of
the engagement team

Audit planning report – January 2023

Significant findings from
the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report – March 2023
Auditor’s Annual Report – March 2023

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit Committee.

P
age 98



41

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report – March 2023

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report – March 2023

Subsequent events • Enquiries of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any subsequent
events have occurred that might affect the financial statements

Audit results report – March 2023

Fraud • Enquiries of the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility

Audit results report – March 2023

P
age 99



42

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report – March 2023

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence
Communication whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit results report – March 2023P
age 100



43

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report – March 2023

Consideration of laws and
regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the
Audit Committee may be aware of

Audit results report – March 2023

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report – March 2023

P
age 101



44

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Group audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management,
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit results report – March 2023

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report – March 2023

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report – March 2023

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report – March 2023
Auditor’s Annual Report – March 2023

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit results report – March 2023
Auditor’s Annual Report – March 2023

Value for Money • Risks of significant weakness identified in planning work
• Commentary against specified reporting criteria on the VFM arrangements, including

any exception report on significant weaknesses.

Audit results report – March 2023
Auditor’s Annual Report – March 2023

P
age 102



45

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group/Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the

Group/Council’s to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the
financial statements, the Audit Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee
and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Objective of our audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the Council’s/ Group’s consolidated financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK) as prepared by you in
accordance with with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, and as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting.
Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit are set out in the formal terms of engagement between the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of the Audit
Committee. The audit does not relieve management or the Audit Committee of their responsibilities.

P
age 103



46

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines the level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

Procedures required by the
Audit Code

• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual
Governance Statement.

• Examining and reporting on the consistency of consolidation schedules or returns with the Council’s audited financial statements
for the relevant reporting period

Other procedures • We are required to discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and Code of Audit Practice

We have included in Appendix B a list of matters that we are required to communicate to you under professional standards.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit (continued)

P
age 104



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2019 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
	7 - Q3 Risks

	8 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY, STRATEGY AND FRAMEWORK
	8 - Risk Management Policy and Strategy
	8 - Risk Management Framework

	9 WHBC SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE (SIAS) PROGRESS REPORT
	10 AUDIT PLANNING REPORT - YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

